
- 1 - 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

MONDAY 18TH JANUARY 2010, AT 6.00 P.M. 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 
 

MEMBERS: Councillors C. B. Taylor (Chairman), Mrs. M. Bunker (Vice-
Chairman), S. R. Colella, Mrs. A. E. Doyle, Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths, 
Ms. H. J. Jones and L. J. Turner 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest and whipping arrangements  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance 
Management Board held on 16th November 2009 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

4. Selby Benchmarking Visit (Pages 7 - 40) 
 

5. Spatial Projects Benefits Review (Pages 41 - 46) 
 

6. Integrated Finance and Performance Report - Verbal Update  
 

7. Town Centre Update (Pages 47 - 60) 
 

8. Shared Services Highlight Report (Pages 61 - 66) 
 

9. Improvement Plan Exception Report (November 2009) (Pages 67 - 80) 
 

10. Performance Report (November 2009) (Pages 81 - 96) 
 

11. Work Programme (Pages 97 - 102) 
 

12. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  



- 2 - 

 
 
 
 
 

K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
11th January 2010 
 



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

MONDAY, 16TH NOVEMBER 2009, AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors C. B. Taylor (Chairman), Mrs. M. Bunker (Vice-Chairman), 
S. R. Colella, Mrs. A. E. Doyle, Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths and L. J. Turner 
 

 In attendance:  Councillor G. Denaro 
 

 Officers: Mr. H. Bennett, Ms. J. Pickering and Ms. A. Scarce 
 
 
 

50/09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

51/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor K. Taylor declared an interest in item 4 (Quarter 2 09/10 Integrated 
Finance & Performance Report) as he had applied for a small business start 
up grant from the Council. 
 

52/09 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Performance management Board held on 
19th October 2009 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

53/09 QUARTER 2009/10 INTEGRATED FINANCE & PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor G. Denaro, Portfolio Holder for 
Resources advised that there was a significant overspend to the end of 
September together with a projected deficit to the end of the financial year.  
The main reasons for this were: 

• the impact of the downturn in the housing market on land charges and 
building control income targets; 

• significant increase in printing charges compared to those originally 
anticipated; and 

• a shortfall on the income from investments due to the rates of return 
being less than predicted. 

 
The Head of Financial Services advised that a number of actions had been 
put in place to bring this back in line by the end of the year, including: 

• Transfer of an element of funds into a low risk but higher yield 
investment.  Following discussions with treasury advisors it was 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Performance Management Board 
16th November 2009 

 

understood that the Council could achieve 2.5% on limited investments 
with similar protection as presently in place. 

• A freeze on vacancies.  The Council was currently holding a vacancy 
freeze in consideration of the future joint arrangements with both 
Redditch and the WETT programme.  The freeze would ensure that 
business critical services were maintained whilst providing savings for 
the remainder of the financial year. 

• Review of non-essential expenditure.  This would include the 
centralising of the office supplies and reviewing non-essential training. 

• A review of contracts in place which would identify where renegotiation 
could take place to reduce costs in the short term. 

 
Members shared their concerns that a reduction in training was not a good 
idea as it played an essential part in the Council’s continued improvement.  
The Head of Financial Services assured Members that funds would be 
available for areas of essential spend to ensure services were delivered to the 
customer. 
 
The Board was informed that the main areas of deficit were Planning and E-
Government and that other areas were having to make savings to 
compensate for this.  The significant increase in printing charges was 
discussed in detail and the Head of Financial Services advised that the 
supplier was being contacted with a view to reviewing this. 
 
During the discussion it was noted that the Dolphin Centre fitness suite 
membership had exceed 750.  Members discussed how this figure could be 
maintained and whether or not it was due to customers choosing it as a 
cheaper option to other gyms following the economic downturn and whether 
this figure could be sustained in future.  The use of a loyalty card system was 
discussed as a way of tracking and targeting users.  
 
Members raised concerns over the use of agency staff and the Head of 
Financial Services advised that this matter had been addressed.  Members 
also shared their concern that the overspend had been taken into account in 
next year’s budget forecast and the Head of Financial Services confirmed that 
the appropriate action had been taken to address this.  Concerns were also 
raised as to why the overspend had not been detected earlier and the Head of 
Financial Services explained that in future the predicted out turn would be part 
of the first quarter review as at June 2010. 
 
Members asked to what extent Portfolio Holders were involved in the 
monitoring process and it was advised that they receive monthly monitoring 
reports and had monthly meetings with the relevant Head of Service.  
Members were asked to note that some departments are maintaining good 
progress and working within their budget. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive advised that the sickness level continued to 
improve. 
 

Page 2



Performance Management Board 
16th November 2009 

 

RECOMMENDED that Portfolio Holders continue to work with Heads of 
Service to ensure overspend is managed and brought back in line with the 
budget. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that it be noted that 62% of performance indicators are improving or 
 stable; 
(b) that it be noted that 58% of performance indicators had achieved their 
 year to date target; 
(c)  that it be noted that 80% of performance indicators are predicted to 
 meet their target at the year end; 
(d) that the particular successes and areas of potential concern as set out 
 in the Council Summary be noted; 
(e) that the current financial position on Revenue and Capital as detailed in 

the report and the proposed actions to mitigate the overspend on 
revenue be noted; 

(f) that the release of previously approved earmarked reserves of £249k 
as set out in Appendix 5 be noted; 

(g) that the budget virements listed in Appendix 6 are approved; and 
(h) that Cabinet recommend to Full Council to reduce the Capital 

Programme 2009/10 by £1.148m as detailed in Appendix 7 to reflect 
the projects, due to the factors detailed in the report will note be 
delivered during 2009/10 and that these projects are recommended to 
be included in the 2010/11 Capital Programme be noted. 

 
54/09 IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT (SEPTEMBER 2009)  

 
The Board considered the Improvement Plan Exception Report as at 30th 
September 2009. 
 
During the discussion Members paid particular attention to CP1: Town Centre 
and in particular 1.4.6 Establish Proposed Civic Centre Study Group and 
commented that this needed to be monitored as the regeneration of the town 
centre as a whole was an important issue.  The Assistant Chief Executive 
confirmed he would contact the Executive Director (Partnerships & Projects) 
and relevant Portfolio Holder to request a project plan/timeline for discussion 
at the next meeting.  It was also confirmed that the New Council House 
Accommodation was on the Overview & Scrutiny Work Programme for 
2010/11 and that the Economic Regeneration Policy was on the current Work 
Programme of the Scrutiny Board, and would be investigated further in early 
2010. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive also drew Members’ attention to item 1.5 Train 
Station and confirmed that Worcestershire County Council continued to work 
with Network Rail, the current design was not sustainable and there was a 
shortfall in the funding available.   The Assistant Chief Executive confirmed he 
would contact County to establish the current position and report back to the 
next meeting. 
 
In relation to FP1: Managing Finances (including Value for Money) Item 5.2.8 
Deliver Use of resources action plan in relation to new framework.  

Page 3



Performance Management Board 
16th November 2009 

 

Management Performance under CAA would be published on 10th December 
and would be included for discussion at a subsequent meeting. 
 
Members questioned the need under PR4: Improving Partnership Working 
item 12.3.1 and the Assistant Chief Executive confirmed that the Council did 
not have a formal grants policy and a corporate policy was needed to clarify 
the Council’s position. 
 
Members were concerned to note that under HR & OD3: Positive Employee 
Climate, item 16.4.1 delivery of employee health and wellbeing programme, 
had been cancelled due to room availability.  This was felt to be unacceptable 
and the Assistant Chief Executive advised that he would check to see that the 
programme had been put in place and that this situation did not happen again. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the revisions to the Improvement Plan Exception report together 

with the corrective action being taken be noted; 
(b) that it be noted that for the 104 actions highlighted for September within 

the plan 76% of the Improvement Plan was on target (green), 8.7% is 
one month behind (amber) and 3.8% is over one month behind (red).  
11.5% of actions have been reprogrammed or suspended with 
approval. 

 
55/09 SHARED SERVICES HIGHLIGHT REPORT - VERBAL UPDATE  

 
The Assistant Chief Executive advised Members that a Highlight Report was 
not available as both Full Councils had agreed to the Shared Services and 
therefore this stage was complete.  There would be a composite highlight 
report available for the Board to consider at the meeting on 21st December 
2009.  Directors’ interviews would take place week commencing 14th 
December 2009 and then the next stage of interviews would commence week 
beginning 18th January 2010 and the new single management team was 
expected to go “live” in mid April 2010.  There have been and will continue to 
be many briefing opportunities for both staff and unions in this process. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive also briefed Members on the current position in 
respect of the Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier programme (WETT), 
particularly with regard to the Council hosting Regulatory Services.  The Board 
will receive regular updates on how the WETT programme was progressing as 
part of the shared services composite report. 
 
Members asked what the position would be with regard to Portfolio Holders’ 
descriptions as these may vary between Redditch and Bromsgrove.  The 
Assistant Chief Executive responded that this was a matter for members. 
 

56/09 SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 2010-2013  
 
The Board considered a report on the proposed Sustainable Community 
Strategy 2010-2013 which was subject to consideration by Full Council on 
18th November 2009. 
 

Page 4



Performance Management Board 
16th November 2009 

 

Members commented that the target dates seemed a considerable time away 
and therefore questioned their relevancy.  A key area of concern was NI188 
Climate Change as currently the Council was at Level 0 and was unlikely to 
reach Level 2 by the end of 2010/11.  The report appeared to be focused on 
performance and less on measures to improve that performance.  Members 
were advised that Climate Change was on the Work Programme of the 
Scrutiny Board and would be looked at early in 2010.  Whilst the Assistant 
Chief Executive acknowledged that Climate Change must be at the forefront, 
this would be difficult in the current economic downturn as many changes that 
need to happen involve a high initial capital outlay.   It will be important to align 
Climate Change improvements to changes in the business as they happen. 
 
Members discussed NI39 – Alcohol harm related hospital admission rates and 
were advised that this was also on the current Scrutiny Board Work 
Programme. 
 
With regard to the section Improving Health and Well Being, Members 
commented on the following items: 

• Item 3 Reduce the impact of alcohol misuse in the workplace.  
Members felt that this was an important area to look at and that brief 
intervention training for some members of staff would be appropriate. 

• NI56 and NI55 Childhood Obesity.  Although the PCT were doing a 
range of things on this, Members felt that involvement should be at the 
very earliest stage, such as Health Visitors.  Members also queried the 
details of NI56 as they felt the information on the areas of the district 
where obesity was over 20%, are not in line with those provided 
previously in the Bromsgrove Profile.  

• LI7 Adults in contact with secondary mental health services in 
employment.  Members felt that the key actions would not improve 
employment for these adults. 

• NI117 – 16-18 year olds who are not in education, employment or 
training (NEET).  Members were concerned that this matter was not 
being addressed and discussed what was available to these young 
people.  The TRUNK would do outreach work in both Charford and 
Sidemoor. 

 
Members felt that a summary of the report should be provided in order to show 
the linkage with the Council’s priorities, key issues and measure of success.   
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) That the Assistant Chief Executive to ask the relevant Portfolio Holder 

to revisit NI155; 
(b) That the Assistant Chief Executive clarify information in NI56 with 

regard to specific district areas with obesity over 20%. 
(c) that in future an executive summary be prepared detailing key issues 

and the linkage to the Council’s priorities. 
(d) that Members felt there was a range of activities available, which 

perhaps needed to be communicated to the young people in a different 
way. 

 
 

Page 5



Performance Management Board 
16th November 2009 

 

57/09 QUARTERLY RECOMMENDATION TRACKER  
 
The Board received the Quarterly Recommendation Tracker and expressed 
concern that item 35/09 (c), introduction of an emergency planning leaflet, had 
been rejected by the Cabinet.  Members also commented on the importance 
of receiving item 39/09 the Shared Services Highlight Report. 
 
RESOLVED that the Recommendation Tracker Report be noted. 
 
 

58/09 DATA QUALITY STRATEGY 6 MONTH UPDATE  
 
The Board considered a report on the progress with regard to the 
implementation of the Data Quality Strategy Action Plan.   
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the Data Quality Strategy Action Plan be noted; and 
(b) that in future this update be provided together with the six monthly 

Performance Management Strategy update report. 
 

59/09 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Having considered a report on the Board’s work programming Members 
shared the Assistant Chief Executive’s concern that the agenda for the 
meeting on 21st December 2009 was long. 
 
RESOLVED that the Work Programme be approved subject to the inclusion of 
a short update from the Head of Financial Services on the Integrated Finance 
& Performance Report at the next meeting and that the Annual Artrix 
Performance Report and “What is Excellence?” be deferred until the meeting 
on 18th January 2010 meeting. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 6



 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

18 JANUARY 2010 
 

SELBY BENCHMARKING VISIT 
 
Responsible Member 
 

Councillor – Kit Taylor, Performance Management 
Board Chairman  

Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett  -Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides the Board with a summary of the lessons learnt from 

a benchmarking visit to Selby District Council in November 2009. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Council:- 
 

i. Note that delivering excellence requires a focus on customer service, 
long term outcomes and value for money (3.5). 

ii. Seek Customer Service Excellence status (3.9). 
iii. Continue with Customer First training for all staff (3.8). 
iv. Improve the format of its annual report (3.10). 
v. Produce a five year Medium Term Financial Strategy (3.10). 
vi. Align its Communications Strategy more closely with the corporate 

priorities 3.11). 
vii. Note that improved communications is largely dependent on having 

an improved story to tell, rather than changes to existing 
communications practices (3.12). 

viii. Introduce “birthday forums” (3.13). 
ix. Improve the frequency and profile of long service awards (3.14). 
x. Improve the service business planning template, in particular, 

sections on workforce planning, workforce targets and procurement 
planning (3.16). 

xi. Develop a change management model that builds on the learning of 
early shared services (3.17). 

xii. Review the town centre programme (3.19). 
xiii. Provide the new Executive Director with Selby’s Economic 

Development Strategy (3.20). 
xiv. Provide the new Head of Planning and Regeneration with Selby’s 

Development Policy Team staffing structure (3.21) 
xv. Produce a more coherent annual community engagement 

programme (3.22). 
xvi. Monitor efficiencies in a similar way to Selby (3.25). 

 
3 BACKGROUND 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



3.1 Selby District Council was rated “weak” in 2004 by the Audit Commission.  
Five years later the Council was re-rated “excellent”.  Selby is similar to 
Bromsgrove District, in that it is essentially a rural district bordering unitary 
authorities, such as Leeds.  It has three market towns, compared to our 
one and a smaller population of 80,000. 

 
3.2 Councillors Steven Collela and Les Turner, along with officers, Hugh 

Bennett (Assistant Chief Executive) and Tony Beirne (Executive Director) 
visited the Selby on 05 November. The Members and officers of Selby 
gave up a considerable part of their time to Bromsgrove on the day and 
provided four CDs of material after the visit.  The Assistant Chief 
Executive has written to Selby’s Chief Executive, Martin Connor to thank 
Selby for their co-operation. 

 
3.3 The following sections look at some of the areas that were considered on 

the visit.  There was a clear difference between Selby and Bromsgrove, 
but the overall view is that Bromsgrove needs to continue with its journey 
and has the right improvement actions in place.  Selby is further along that 
journey.  It should be remember that Bromsgrove was only rated “fair” in 
March 2009, one category above “weak”. 

 
Excellence 

 
3.4 A key point made by Selby’s Chief Executive was that the Selby did not 

aim for excellence, as defined by the Audit Commission, but concentrated 
on delivering the things the Council knew were important to its residents 
and that excellence flowed from this.  Although this sounds simple, it does 
mean that Selby are very good at listening and equally good at delivering 
longer term outcomes. 

 
Performance Indicators 

 
3.5 This focus on longer term outcomes is really illustrated by the comparative 

performance of the two councils on their performance indicators.  Selby’s 
indicators are attached at Appendix 1.  There is no real discernable 
difference between the two councils’ indicators.  This should not really 
come as a surprise. The Government Monitoring Board’s view was that a 
reasonable set of performance indicators was the minimum position, a bit 
like setting a balanced budget, and the pre-cursor to going on to deliver on 
a wider agenda.  The main message to emerge from the trip is the need to 
focus on three things:- 

 
a. Delivery of longer term outcomes. 

 
b. Excellent customer service. 

 
c. Value for money. 

 
3.6 In all three of these, Selby is clearly further ahead than Bromsgrove; 

however, our paths are similar.  The governance of the two councils was 
broadly similar and this should not come as a surprise either, given the 
focus on governance at Bromsgrove in recent years. 

 

Page 8



Customer Service 
 
3.7 Selby operates a customer service centre operation, similar to 

Bromsgrove.  Members and officers visited the one in Selby town.  The 
centre was impressive.  Good practices included: a meet and greet 
system, an excellent A to Z customer leaflet rack, the use of duty officers 
(for planning, housing and benefits), quality assurance techniques for the 
customer service advisers, customer service training across all parts of the 
Council and a Customer Service Excellence self assessment, with a view 
to accreditation.  Selby also operate an “Access to Selby” Board, which 
focuses on customer service, similar to Bromsgrove’s Customer First 
Board. 

 
3.8 Bromsgrove’s customer service centre is already very good and has been 

held up as national best practice (as part of the Worcestershire Hub) by 
the Local Government Chronicle, so we must not be too hard on 
ourselves.  The Planning Service has recently migrated to the Customer 
Service Centre, which means we are now using the duty officer system, 
but there may be further opportunity for this.  Bromsgrove has a good 
programme of customer first training (we are now in our third year).  
Customer First Part 3 was innovative and involved the use of customer 
heartbeats for each team.  2010 will focus on plain English with empathy, 
which is similar to the training undertaken in Selby. 

 
3.9 A key difference was that Selby have just completed a Customer Service 

Excellence self assessment with a view to accreditation.  Customer 
Service Excellence replaced Charter Mark and is like Investors in People, 
but for customer service.  The Assistant Chief Executive’s view is that 
Bromsgrove is 12-18 months away from achieving this accreditation.  
Bromsgrove should seek accreditation. 

 
Governance and Management Practices 

 
3.10 Selby’s governance and management practices are very similar to 

Bromsgrove’s.  It was interesting to note that their Annual Report was 
produced to a higher standard, being more glossy and about good news 
than performance indicators.  Selby also operate a five year medium term 
financial strategy (Bromsgrove’s is three years). 

 
Communications and Workforce Practices 

 
3.11 Selby’s communications strategy was explicitly written around the 

Council’s priorities.  Bromsgrove’s has priorities, but is not as aligned to 
the corporate priorities as this. We should adopt this practice. 

 
3.12 Generally, Bromsgrove’s communications are effective, but one of the key 

things to emerge from the Selby visit is that they have a good story to tell, 
whereas we are yet to deliver on some of our longer term outcomes e.g. 
town centre, Longbridge and we have had to take a series of difficult 
decisions e.g. charging for green waste, increased car parking charges, 
closing the Museum.  Communications is not the issue, having a better 
story to tell is. 

 

Page 9



3.13 One small bit of good practice that was identified was “birthday forums”.  
Every couple of months, the Chief Executive or senior officer has a forum 
with every member of staff that has had a birthday during that period.  
Staff have a cup of tea and a slice of cake with the Chief Executive.  This 
brings staff from different departments together, helps further create a nice 
environment to work in and enables staff to raise any issues they like with 
the Chief Executive. We should look to adopt this practice. 

 
3.14 Staying with the subject of creating a nice working atmosphere, everyone 

will recognise that this is important and perhaps more so, during the 
difficult times ahead.  Selby has Long Service Awards for 20 years, 30 
years and 40 years service.  Bromsgrove’s is 25 years and lacks profile.  
We should review this area and consider a lower staring point, perhaps 10 
years, as the days of “job for life” have gone. 

 
3.15 Selby appeared to be further ahead with regard to workforce planning. 

Their business plans contained more information than ours on staff 
gender, age, ethnicity, disability and qualifications; however, it was less 
clear how this information was being used.  There were also explicit 
targets for each department on turnover, sickness and staff satisfaction. 

 
3.16 Bromsgrove has much of this information and is undertaking a 

comprehensive approach to workforce planning, but it needs to be further 
integrated into the service business planning framework, as do the targets 
on sickness, turnover and staff satisfaction. 

 
3.17 Selby’s Change Protocol was focused around HR practices.  There has 

been some discussion about a wider change protocol for services going 
through transformation at Bromsgrove and Redditch that builds on the 
learning from the early shared services.  Such a protocol should make 
links to the project management methodology, HR practices, lean 
systems, change management approaches, service levels agreements 
etc. 

 
Economic Regeneration 

 
3.18 Selby town centre re-development is further advanced.  The major 

redevelopment of the town was started by the relocation of a school from 
existing Victorian buildings (the Parkside listing remains a damaging set 
back for Bromsgrove).  The town has benefited from a new school, a new 
civic centre and a community hospital.  The Council’s main offices are due 
to move and Tesco’s set to expand (subject to planning permission) and 
will require highways and junction improvements. 

 
3.19 Clearly, there are lots of parallels to Bromsgrove and it is uncanny that the 

start of Selby’s programme was linked to a school.  The similarity between 
the two programmes suggests that Bromsgrove’s programme is broadly 
correct.  The new Executive Director will need to familiarise himself with 
the town centre programme and a “performance clinic” that brings him up 
to speed, but also provides an opportunity to review the programme would 
seem appropriate at this juncture. 

 

Page 10



3.20 It was interesting to note that Selby had no Economic Development 
Officer.  Selby’s view was that the area did not need promoting, as major 
businesses would already be aware of the retail opportunities that exist; 
however, Selby considered the availability of retail sites through strategic 
planning key.  A pre-cursor to this is to understand the level of demand for 
these sites by the retail sector through a retail study. 

 
3.21 Selby does have an Economic Development Strategy in place and this 

should be provided to the new Executive Director.  The Strategy is 
supported by comprehensive Retail, Commercial and Leisure study, as a 
pre-cursor to Area Action Plan and Core Strategy.  Similarly, information 
supplied by Selby on the Development Policy Team, should be passed to 
our team, as part of their work on the I&DeA Peer Planning Review, which 
identified capacity as an issue. 

 
Community Engagement 

 
3.22 Bromsgrove scored three out of four for prioritisation in its Comprehensive 

Performance Assessment and the Audit Commission commented 
favourable on how community engagement had fed into the decision-
making process of the Council.  Bromsgrove has many positives, like “U 
Decide”, PACT, Budget Jury, Disabled User Group, Equalities and 
Diversity Forum.  All of that said, the practice at Selby was impressive and 
possibly more high profile. 

 
3.23 Selby’s approach was very focused around the annual business cycle.  

Community engagement starts with the Leader giving a “State of the 
District” address at Full Council, which kick starts a three month 
programme of engagement, which includes all access channels e.g. public 
meetings, postal, e-mail, web surveys, press coverage etc.  Bromsgrove 
probably needs to get better at using all channels, having a coherent 
programme, a wider audience and feeding back.  For example, Selby’s 
audience included:- 

 
a. 1,000 local businesses; 

 
b. 450 plus community groups; 

 
c. All parish councils; 

 
d. Staff; 

 
e. Partner agencies; 

 
f. A youth council; and 

 
g. A citizen’s panel. 

 
3.24 As Selby pointed out they “consult with the community in its entirety”.  

Selby noted that public meetings tended to “attract a small core of 
committed individuals”!  We should be wary of committing ourselves to too 
many such meetings, as they involve a lot of time and resource to set up, 

Page 11



in order to reach a small number of people.  Juries, electronic 
engagement, the use of the press etc. are more effective. 

 
Value for Money 

 
3.25 At the time of our two respective CPA, Selby were clearly further ahead 

than Bromsgrove.  Reducing expenditure levels was explicitly indentified in 
Selby’s VFM Strategy, whereas Bromsgrove has been building capacity in 
order to catapult its way out of a “poor” rating.  We can now start work on 
becoming leaner.  Efficiency gains and procurement plans are both 
explicitly identified in Selby’s business plans, a practice we should adopt.  
The corporate savings and efficiency strategy is very explicit and is 
reported on using a traffic light system (see Appendix 2) we may be able 
to learn from this too. 

 
3.26 Selby had already got shared services in place for Building Control, 

Internal Audit, ICT, Payroll and procurement; however, Selby noted that 
further opportunities may be more limited due to the willingness of 
otherwise of its partners.  Selby had also successfully outsourced: 
streetscene and leisure services (an attempt to outsource planning had 
not been successful and Selby were open about that). 

 
3.27 Selby’s VFM vision was to be a commissioning council. It was interesting 

to note that there was very little mention of quantitative benchmarking e.g. 
cost per 1,000 population etc.  The Audit Commission is keen on this type 
of benchmarking, but the Selby visit would suggest a focus on activities 
that are actually going to reduce costs. 

 
3.28 Bromsgrove has made significant strides in this area since the CPA.  We 

now have shared services for: community safety, payroll, elections 
services and procurement.  We will have a single management team for 
Bromsgrove and Redditch, which goes live on the 20 April and we are due 
to host the new County Regulatory Services function (along with Redditch) 
through the Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT) programme 
(Internal Audit and Property Management are also due to be transferred 
as part of WETT).  With the single management team in place, we can 
then expect a three year programme that delivers a full range of shared 
services for the two councils. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None. 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1 CO2 – Improvement. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 

Page 12



 
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
  

• Not delivering our Vision of being an excellent council. 
 

7.2    These risks are being managed as follows:  
 
•   Delivering Excellence: 
 

Risk Register: Corporate 
Key Objective Ref No: 12   
Key Objective: Ensure the Council achieves an improved rating under 
CAA regime 
12.2 – Deliver a process for what excellence looks like. 

  
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  Recommendation on seeking customer service excellence accreditation. 
 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None arising from this report. 
 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 See section on VFM. 
 
11. CLIMATE CHANGE AND CARBON IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 None arising directly from the report; however, climate change is one of our 

priorities and we will need to deliver long term outcomes on this priority, in 
particular, significant reductions in our CO2 emissions. 

 
9. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Procurement Issues N/A 
 
Personnel Implications  N/A 
Governance/Performance Management N/A 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 N/A 
Policy N/A 
Environmental N/A 
Equalities and Diversity N/A 

 
10. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holders 
 

Via E-Mail and at 
PMB. 

Chief Executive 
 

Via e-mail. 

Page 13



Corporate Director (Services)  
 

Via e-mail. 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Financial Services 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Via e-mail. 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
11. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 –  Selby’s Performance Indicators 

Appendix 2 – Corporate Efficiency Reporting 
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

2008/09 PMB Work Programme. 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Name:   Hugh Bennett  
E Mail:  h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881430 
 

 

Page 14



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

H
U

M
A

N
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

B
V

2a
T

he
 le

ve
l o

f t
he

 E
qu

al
ity

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t t
o 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

co
nf

or
m

s 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f g

en
de

r,
 r

ac
e 

an
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l
Le

ve
l 2

 
Le

ve
l 3

L
ev

el
 2

R
ed

B
V

2b
T

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 a
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

R
ac

e 
E

qu
al

ity
 S

ch
em

e 
(R

E
S

) 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 it
s 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
68

.0
0%

89
.0

0%
68

.0
0%

R
ed

B
V

11
a

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 to

p-
pa

id
 5

%
 o

f l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

st
af

f w
ho

 a
re

 
w

om
en

.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

31
.8

2%
31

.8
2%

30
.0

0%
R

ed

B
V

11
b

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
to

p 
5%

 o
f L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
st

af
f w

ho
 

ar
e 

fr
om

 a
n 

et
hn

ic
 m

in
or

ity
.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
4.

54
%

4.
54

%
0.

00
%

R
ed

B
V

11
c

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
to

p 
pa

id
 5

%
 o

f s
ta

ff 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

a 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 th
os

e 
in

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

sc
ho

ol
s.

).
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

0.
00

%
4.

54
%

10
.0

0%
G

re
en

B
V

12
T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s/
sh

ift
s 

lo
st

 to
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

du
e 

to
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

ab
se

nc
e.

Lo
w

 N
um

be
r

8.
90

8.
50

8.
31

G
re

en

B
V

14
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

re
tir

in
g 

ea
rly

 (
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

ill
-

he
al

th
 r

et
ire

m
en

ts
) 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
to

ta
l w

or
k 

fo
rc

e.
Lo

w
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
0.

00
%

0.
37

%
0.

00
%

G
re

en

B
V

15
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

re
tir

in
g 

on
 

gr
ou

nd
s 

of
 il

l h
ea

lth
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l w
or

kf
or

ce
.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

0.
00

%
0.

37
%

0.
00

%
G

re
en

B
V

16
a

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ith
 a

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
4.

12
%

4.
95

%
4.

17
%

R
ed

B
V

17
a 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
fr

om
 e

th
ni

c 
m

in
or

ity
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
0.

70
%

1.
41

%
0.

70
%

R
ed

H
R

1
V

ol
un

ta
ry

 le
av

er
s 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 s

ta
ff 

in
 p

os
t.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

13
.9

3%
13

.0
0%

11
.0

8%
G

re
en

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

1,
3,

4,
5,

7

Page 15



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T 
P

O
L

IC
Y

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

N
I1

54
N

et
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 h
om

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

H
ig

h 
N

um
be

r
58

3
44

0
22

6
R

ed

N
I1

55
N

um
be

r 
of

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 (

gr
os

s)
.

H
ig

h 
N

um
be

r
10

1
11

5
23

R
ed

N
I1

59
S

up
pl

y 
of

 r
ea

dy
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 h
ou

si
ng

 s
ite

s.
10

0%
 o

r 
G

re
at

er
5 

ye
ar

s 
(1

26
%

)/
15

 
ye

ar
s

5 
ye

ar
s/

 1
5 

ye
ar

s 
A

w
ai

ti
n

g
 

D
at

a

N
I1

70
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

la
nd

 th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
va

ca
nt

 o
r 

de
re

lic
t 

fo
r 

m
or

e 
th

an
 5

 y
ea

rs
.

Lo
w

 o
r 

re
du

ci
ng

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

N
/A

8.
20

%
8.

21
%

A
m

b
er

N
I1

71
N

ew
 b

us
in

es
s 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

ra
te

.
H

ig
h 

N
um

be
r

N
/A

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 

%
A

w
ai

ti
n

g
 

D
at

a

N
I1

97
Im

pr
ov

ed
 lo

ca
l b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 –

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f l
oc

al
 

si
te

s.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

N
/A

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 

%
5.

80
%

G
re

en

D
P

5
A

ch
ie

ve
d 

al
l L

D
F

 ta
rg

et
s 

as
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
n.

N
/A

N
/A

Y
es

N
o

R
ed

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

N
TR

O
L

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

B
C

3
P

la
ns

 c
he

ck
ed

 w
ith

in
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 ti
m

e 
pe

rio
d.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
99

.0
0%

10
0.

00
%

99
.3

0%
A

m
b

er

B
C

9
%

 o
f c

us
to

m
er

s 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

G
oo

d/
 E

xc
el

le
nt

.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

84
.0

0%
80

.0
0%

85
.0

0%
G

re
en

4 2

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

3 3 5 3

1,
2,

3,
4,

5,
6,

7

1,
77

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

Page 16



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L
C

o
d

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

G
o

o
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
20

07
-2

00
8 

Y
ea

r-
E

n
d

20
08

-2
00

9 
T

ar
g

et
20

08
-2

00
9 

A
ct

u
al

T
ra

ff
ic

 
L

ig
h

t
N

I1
57

a
(O

ld
 

B
V

10
9a

)

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
63

.6
4%

65
.0

0%
76

.6
7%

G
re

en
60

.0
0%

N
I1

57
b

(O
ld

 
B

V
10

9b
)

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

of
 m

in
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
68

.9
7%

70
.0

0%
71

.2
3%

G
re

en
65

.0
0%

N
I1

57
c

(O
ld

 
B

V
10

9c
) 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

of
 o

th
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
82

.9
1%

82
.0

0%
86

.3
6%

G
re

en
80

.0
0%

P
4

(O
ld

 
B

V
20

4)
 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pe

al
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 a
llo

w
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 ’s

 d
ec

is
io

n 
to

 r
ef

us
e 

on
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

, 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pe

al
s 

ag
ai

ns
t r

ef
us

al
s 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

31
.1

0%
25

.0
0%

24
.6

2%
G

re
en

7 77

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

7

Page 17



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
C

o
d

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

G
o

o
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
20

07
-2

00
8 

Y
ea

r-
E

n
d

20
08

-2
00

9 
T

ar
g

et
20

08
-2

00
9 

A
ct

u
al

T
ra

ff
ic

 
L

ig
h

t

N
I1

80
T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 c
ha

ng
es

 o
f c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

ffe
ct

 
cu

st
om

er
s’

 H
B

/C
T

B
 e

nt
itl

em
en

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
.

H
ig

h 
N

um
be

r
78

.9
80

.0
16

8.
4

G
re

en

N
I1

81
T

im
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it/

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 B
en

ef
it 

ne
w

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
 e

ve
nt

s.
Lo

w
 N

um
be

r 
of

 D
ay

s
18

.9
 d

ay
s

21
.0

 d
ay

s
6.

5 
d

ay
s

G
re

en

L
O

C
A

L
 T

A
X

A
TI

O
N

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

 L
T

1
(O

ld
 B

V
9)

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
co

lle
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 

th
e 

ye
ar

.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

97
.2

6%
98

.0
5%

97
.9

9%
A

m
b

er

 L
T

2
(O

ld
 

B
V

10
)

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 n

on
-d

om
es

tic
 r

at
es

 d
ue

 fo
r 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
ye

ar
 w

hi
ch

 w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
99

.0
1%

99
.2

5%
98

.2
9%

A
m

b
er

L
T

3
(O

ld
 L

T
1)

 
R

ec
ov

er
y 

of
 C

ou
nc

il 
T

ax
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 p

rio
r.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
98

.4
2%

98
.7

0%
98

.7
9%

G
re

en

 L
T

4
(O

ld
 L

T
2)

R
ec

ov
er

y 
of

 C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 fr
om

 a
ll 

ot
he

r 
ye

ar
s.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
99

.3
6%

99
.4

0%
99

.6
3%

G
re

en

L
T

5
(O

ld
 L

T
3)

R
ec

ov
er

y 
of

 N
at

io
na

l N
on

 D
om

es
tic

 R
at

es
.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
99

.2
8%

99
.5

5%
99

.7
3%

G
re

en

 L
T

6
(O

ld
 L

T
4)

R
ec

ov
er

y 
of

 N
at

io
na

l N
on

 D
om

es
tic

 R
at

es
 fr

om
 a

ll 
ot

he
r 

ye
ar

s.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

99
.7

1%
99

.7
8%

99
.7

9%
G

re
en

L
T

7
(N

ew
)

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
ta

x 
pa

ye
rs

 p
ay

in
g 

by
 d

ire
ct

 d
eb

it.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

N
/A

63
.0

0%
68

.8
5%

G
re

en

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

1,
4,

7

1,
4,

7

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

5,
7

5,
7

5,
7

5,
7

5,
7

5,
7

5,
7

Page 18



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

R
ev

1
(O

ld
 

B
V

66
a)

R
en

t c
ol

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

as
 a

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 r

en
ts

 
ow

ed
 o

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
en

ue
 A

cc
ou

nt
 (

H
R

A
) 

dw
el

lin
gs

.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

99
.0

0%
99

.3
8%

98
.4

4%
A

m
b

er

R
ev

2
(O

ld
 

B
V

66
b

)

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

te
na

nt
s 

w
ith

 m
or

e 
th

an
 s

ev
en

 
w

ee
ks

 o
f (

gr
os

s)
 r

en
t a

rr
ea

rs
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
ou

nc
il 

te
na

nt
s.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

1.
35

%
1.

57
%

1.
51

%
G

re
en

R
ev

3
(O

ld
 

B
V

66
c)

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 te

na
nt

s 
in

 a
rr

ea
rs

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
N

ot
ic

es
 

S
ee

ki
ng

 P
os

se
ss

io
n 

se
rv

ed
.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

32
.6

5%
22

.0
0%

30
.8

0%
R

ed

R
ev

4
(O

ld
 

B
V

66
d

)

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

te
na

nt
s 

ev
ic

te
d 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f 
re

nt
 a

rr
ea

rs
.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

0.
58

%
0.

00
%

0.
29

%
R

ed

R
ev

5
(O

ld
 

R
E

V
1)

R
en

t a
rr

ea
rs

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 te

na
nt

s 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

's
 r

en
t r

ol
l.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

1.
32

%
1.

38
%

1.
60

%
R

ed

R
ev

6
(O

ld
 

R
E

V
2)

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

ou
nc

il 
te

na
nt

s 
ow

in
g 

m
or

e 
th

an
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

 o
r 

m
or

e 
re

nt
 (

ex
cl

ud
in

g 
am

ou
nt

s 
un

de
r 

£2
50

).
Lo

w
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
0.

80
%

0.
56

%
0.

55
%

G
re

en

R
ev

7
(N

ew
)

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 te

na
nt

s 
pa

yi
ng

 b
y 

di
re

ct
 d

eb
it.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
N

/A
35

.0
0%

35
.6

7%
G

re
en

A
C

C
O

U
N

TA
N

C
Y

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

N
I1

79

V
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

 –
 to

ta
l n

et
 v

al
ue

 o
f o

n-
go

in
g 

ca
sh

-r
el

ea
si

ng
 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 g
ai

ns
 th

at
 h

av
e 

im
pa

ct
ed

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
st

ar
t o

f 
th

e 
20

08
/0

9 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

  A
ve

ra
ge

 3
%

 p
.a

 c
um

ul
at

iv
e 

to
 

20
10

/2
01

1.

H
ig

h 
V

al
ue

£1
,1

00
k

£5
29

k
£5

38
k

G
re

en

A
C

1
C

lo
se

do
w

n 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 p

ro
du

ce
 r

el
ev

an
t s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 
st

at
ut

or
y 

de
ad

lin
es

 a
nd

 o
bt

ai
n 

co
un

ci
llo

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
.

N
/A

A
ch

ie
ve

d
30

-J
un

A
ch

ie
ve

d
G

re
en

A
C

2
P

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 a
nn

ua
l b

ud
ge

t w
ith

in
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
nn

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s 

by
 e

nd
 o

f J
an

ua
ry

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
.

N
/A

A
ch

ie
ve

d
31

-J
an

A
ch

ie
ve

d
G

re
en

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

4,
5,

7

5,
7

5,
7

5,
7

5,
7

5,
7 5

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

5

1,
2,

3,
4,

5,
6,

7

5,
7

Page 19



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

C
U

S
TO

M
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
C

o
d

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

G
o

o
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
20

07
-2

00
8 

Y
ea

r-
E

n
d

20
08

-2
00

9 
T

ar
g

et
20

08
-2

00
9 

A
ct

u
al

T
ra

ff
ic

 
L

ig
h

t

N
I1

4
A

vo
id

ab
le

 c
on

ta
ct

: T
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 c

on
ta

ct
s 

w
ith

in
 k

ey
 

se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 a

re
 a

 p
oo

r 
us

e 
of

 c
us

to
m

er
 a

nd
 o

ffi
ce

r 
tim

e.
Lo

w
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
N

/A
N

/A
1.

36
%

T
el

1a
80

%
 o

f t
el

ep
ho

ne
 c

al
ls

 d
ire

ct
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 

C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e 

ar
e 

an
sw

er
ed

 w
ith

in
 2

0 
se

co
nd

s.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

50
.5

0%
80

.0
0%

58
.5

0%
R

ed

C
u

st
 S

at
 -

 
P

h
o

n
es

 
(N

ew
)

T
he

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f c

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

al
l C

en
tr

e.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

N
/A

85
.0

0%
94

.0
0%

G
re

en

C
u

st
 S

at
 -

 
F

2F
 (

N
ew

)
T

he
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f c
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct
 C

en
tr

e.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

N
/A

85
.0

0%
94

.0
0%

G
re

en

Q
A

(N
ew

)
T

he
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ac

t e
ith

er
 fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

 
or

 v
ia

 th
e 

ph
on

e.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

N
/A

80
.0

0%
87

.9
9%

G
re

en

F
2F

(N
ew

)
T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 w

ai
t t

im
e 

be
fo

re
 a

 c
us

to
m

er
 is

 s
ee

n 
by

 a
n 

ad
vi

so
r.

Lo
w

 w
ai

t t
im

e
N

/A
10

.0
0 

m
in

10
.6

0 
m

in
R

ed

C
E

N
TR

A
L

 A
D

M
IN

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

B
V

8
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 in
vo

ic
es

 fo
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 g
oo

ds
 &

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pa

id
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 o
r 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ag

re
ed

 p
ay

m
en

t t
er

m
s.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
97

.5
6%

98
.0

0%
97

.2
9%

A
m

b
er

C
O

M
1

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 C

or
po

ra
te

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
ed

 w
ith

in
 5

 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
92

.0
0%

R
ed

C
O

M
2

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 C

or
po

ra
te

 C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

fu
lly

 r
es

po
nd

ed
 to

 
w

ith
in

 1
5 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

90
.0

0%
86

.0
0%

79
.0

0%
R

ed

C
O

M
3

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

al
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s.
Lo

w
 N

um
be

r
2

0
0

G
re

en

C
O

M
4 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
se

ttl
ed

 lo
ca

lly
.

N
/A

4
N

/A
4

C
O

M
5

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

O
m

bu
ds

m
an

.
Lo

w
 N

um
be

r
33

N
/A

25

C
O

N
1

(N
ew

)
N

um
be

r 
of

 p
as

se
s 

fo
r 

fr
ee

 n
at

io
nw

id
e 

bu
s 

tr
av

el
 is

su
ed

 to
 

el
de

rly
/ d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
rs

on
s.

H
ig

h 
N

um
be

r
N

/A
N

/A
2,

94
8

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

1 1 1 1 1 1

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

7 1 1 1 1 1 3

Page 20



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

E
-G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
C

o
d

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

G
o

o
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
20

07
-2

00
8 

Y
ea

r-
E

n
d

20
08

-2
00

9 
T

ar
g

et
20

08
-2

00
9 

A
ct

u
al

T
ra

ff
ic

 
L

ig
h

t

E
G

15
7 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 ty

pe
s 

of
 in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 e

na
bl

ed
 fo

r 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 d
el

iv
er

y 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

ty
pe

s 
of

 
in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 le

ga
lly

 p
er

m
is

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 
de

liv
er

y 
(a

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 P

ID
 L

is
t)

.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
G

re
en

E
G

15
7a

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 ty

pe
s 

of
 in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 e

na
bl

ed
 fo

r 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 d
el

iv
er

y 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

ty
pe

s 
of

 
in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 le

ga
lly

 p
er

m
is

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

 
de

liv
er

y 
(a

s 
ad

de
d 

to
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 P

ID
 L

is
t)

.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
G

re
en

E
G

01
N

um
be

r 
of

 W
eb

si
te

 p
ag

e 
im

pr
es

si
on

s.
 

H
ig

h 
N

um
be

r
2.

1m
2.

1m
2,

55
2,

82
3

G
re

en

E
G

02
N

um
be

r 
of

 u
ni

qu
e 

vi
si

to
rs

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il'
s 

W
eb

si
te

.
H

ig
h 

N
um

be
r

18
6,

37
4

18
6,

37
4

18
4,

07
1

R
ed

E
G

03
(N

ew
)

In
te

rn
et

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 v

ia
 w

eb
si

te
 (

tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

).
H

ig
h 

N
um

be
r

2,
78

0
2,

78
0

3,
70

4
G

re
en

E
G

04
(N

ew
)

In
te

rn
et

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 v

ia
 w

eb
si

te
 (

va
lu

e)
.

H
ig

h 
V

al
ue

£3
82

,7
20

£3
82

,7
20

£4
83

,9
56

G
re

en

E
G

05
(N

ew
)

T
ak

e 
up

 o
f o

nl
in

e 
se

rv
ic

es
.

H
ig

h 
N

um
be

r
N

/A
T

B
A

67
2

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
C

o
d

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

G
o

o
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
20

07
-2

00
8 

Y
ea

r-
E

n
d

20
08

-2
00

9 
T

ar
g

et
20

08
-2

00
9 

A
ct

u
al

T
ra

ff
ic

 
L

ig
h

t

N
I1

82
a

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f f
oo

d 
&

 h
ea

lth
 &

 s
af

et
y 

se
rv

ic
es

).
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

N
ot

 
M

ea
su

re
d 

(N
ew

 
In

di
ca

to
r)

70
%

83
%

G
re

en

N
I1

84
F

oo
d 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 b

ro
ad

ly
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 
w

ith
 fo

od
 la

w
.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e

N
ot

 
M

ea
su

re
d 

(N
ew

 
In

di
ca

to
r)

B
as

el
in

e 
da

ta
 fo

r 
08

/0
9

82
%

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

1,
5,

7

1,
5,

7

1,
5,

7

1,
5,

7

1,
5,

7

1,
5,

7

1,
5,

7

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

3,
4

3,
4

Page 21



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
TA

L
 P

R
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
C

o
d

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

G
o

o
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
20

07
-2

00
8 

Y
ea

r-
E

n
d

20
08

-2
00

9 
T

ar
g

et
20

08
-2

00
9 

A
ct

u
al

T
ra

ff
ic

 
L

ig
h

t

N
I1

82
b

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s)

.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

N
ot

 
M

ea
su

re
d 

(N
ew

 
In

di
ca

to
r)

70
%

87
%

G
re

en

N
I1

85

C
O

2 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fr
om

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
op

er
at

io
ns

.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

N
ot

 
M

ea
su

re
d 

(N
ew

 
In

di
ca

to
r)

N
ot

 
m

ea
su

re
d 

(n
ew

 
in

di
ca

to
r)

0%

N
I1

87

T
ac

kl
in

g 
fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
 -

 %
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
in

co
m

e 
ba

se
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

liv
in

g 
in

 h
om

es
 w

ith
 a

 lo
w

 e
ne

rg
y 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
ra

tin
g.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

A
nn

ua
l

N
ot

 
m

ea
su

re
d 

(n
ew

 
in

di
ca

to
r)

18
%

N
I1

88
P

la
nn

in
g 

to
 a

da
pt

 to
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

.
H

ig
h 

Le
ve

l 
Le

ve
l 1

Le
ve

l 2
L

ev
el

 0
R

ed

H
IP

 H
S

S
A

P
riv

at
e 

S
ec

to
r 

H
om

es
 v

ac
an

t f
or

 m
or

e 
th

an
 6

 m
on

th
s.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

1.
56

%
N

ot
 

R
eq

ui
re

d
0.

00
%

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

E
N

E

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

N
I1

91

R
es

id
ua

l h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 p
er

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 -

 k
ilo

gr
am

s 
of

 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 th
at

 is
 n

ot
 s

en
t f

or
 r

eu
se

, 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

or
 is

 n
ot

 c
om

po
st

ed
 o

r 
an

ae
ro

bi
c 

di
ge

st
io

n 
pe

r 
ho

us
eh

ol
d.

Lo
w

 K
g

74
7k

g
73

9k
g

70
5k

g
G

re
en

N
I1

92

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
ec

yc
le

d 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
ed

 -
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 a

ris
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

en
t b

y 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

fo
r 

re
-u

se
, r

ec
yc

lin
g,

 c
om

po
st

in
g 

or
 tr

ea
tm

en
t b

y 
an

ae
ro

bi
c 

di
ge

st
io

n.

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
32

.2
8%

34
.0

0%
36

.2
6%

G
re

en

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

3,
4

2,
5

3,
4

2,
7

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

3,
5 2 2

Page 22



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

S
TR

E
E

TS
C

E
N

E
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
ed

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

N
I1

95
a

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
- 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 r

el
ev

an
t l

an
d 

an
d 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
th

at
 is

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

de
po

si
ts

 o
f d

et
rit

us
 th

at
 fa

ll 
be

lo
w

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

le
ve

l.
Lo

w
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
N

/A
13

.0
0%

11
.8

3%
G

re
en

N
I1

95
b

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
- 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 r

el
ev

an
t l

an
d 

an
d 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
th

at
 is

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

de
po

si
ts

 o
f l

itt
er

 th
at

 fa
ll 

be
lo

w
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
le

ve
l.

Lo
w

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

N
/A

5.
00

%
4.

50
%

G
re

en

N
I1

95
c

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
- 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 r

el
ev

an
t l

an
d 

an
d 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
th

at
 is

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

de
po

si
ts

 o
f f

ly
-p

os
tin

g 
th

at
 fa

ll 
be

lo
w

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

le
ve

l.
Lo

w
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
0%

0%
0%

G
re

en

N
I1

95
d

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l c

le
an

lin
es

s 
- 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 r

el
ev

an
t l

an
d 

an
d 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
th

at
 is

 a
ss

es
se

d 
as

 h
av

in
g 

de
po

si
ts

 o
f g

ra
ffi

ti 
th

at
 fa

ll 
be

lo
w

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

le
ve

l.
Lo

w
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
0%

0%
0%

G
re

en

N
I1

96
F

ly
tip

pi
ng

 -
 Y

ea
r 

on
 y

ea
r 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n.

Lo
w

 G
ra

di
ng

G
ra

de
 2

 
(E

ffe
ct

iv
e)

G
ra

de
 3

G
ra

d
e 

2
R

ed

A
B

B
E

Y
 L

E
IS

U
R

E
 C

E
N

TR
E

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

A
L

C
3

N
um

be
r 

of
 S

ka
te

pa
rk

 U
se

rs
.

H
ig

h 
N

um
be

r
21

,6
48

23
,7

89
21

,5
81

R
ed

A
L

C
8

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
its

 w
ith

 a
 c

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 c
ar

d 
(L

ei
su

re
 C

ar
d)

.
H

ig
h 

N
um

be
r

4,
92

4
6,

40
0

5,
67

7
R

ed

A
L

C
9

T
ot

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tr
e 

V
is

its
.

H
ig

h 
N

um
be

r
40

7,
88

7
43

9,
42

4
48

2,
91

6
G

re
en

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

2 2 2 2 2

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

5 1 3

Page 23



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

TA
D

C
A

S
TE

R
 L

E
IS

U
R

E
 C

E
N

TR
E

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al

T
L

C
8

N
um

be
r 

of
 v

is
its

 w
ith

 a
 c

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 c
ar

d 
(L

ei
su

re
 C

ar
d)

.
H

ig
h 

N
um

be
r

1,
17

5
1,

03
2

1,
65

5
G

re
en

T
L

C
9

T
ot

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tr
e 

V
is

its
.

H
ig

h 
N

um
be

r
41

,7
05

47
,3

03
51

,7
41

G
re

en

H
O

M
E

L
E

S
S

N
E

S
S

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

N
I1

56
N

um
be

r 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

liv
in

g 
in

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n.
Lo

w
 N

um
be

r
27

27
19

G
re

en

P
O

L
IC

Y
C

o
d

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

G
o

o
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
20

07
-2

00
8 

Y
ea

r-
E

n
d

20
08

-2
00

9 
T

ar
g

et
20

08
-2

00
9 

A
ct

u
al

T
ra

ff
ic

 
L

ig
h

t

N
I1

60
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

te
na

nt
s 

sa
tif

ac
tio

n 
w

ith
 la

nd
lo

rd
 s

er
vi

ce
s

H
ig

h 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
77

%
77

%
77

%
G

re
en

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

N
I1

58
%

 n
on

 d
ec

en
t c

ou
nc

il 
ho

m
es

.
Lo

w
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e
40

.0
0%

25
.0

0%
28

.2
9%

A
m

b
er

L
E

G
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

C
o

d
e

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
G

o
o

d
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

20
07

-2
00

8 
Y

ea
r-

E
n

d
20

08
-2

00
9 

T
ar

g
et

20
08

-2
00

9 
A

ct
u

al
T

ra
ff

ic
 

L
ig

h
t

S
S

1
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
se

ar
ch

es
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t i
n 

10
 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s.
H

ig
h 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

99
.8

7%
10

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
G

re
en

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

3 3

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

1,
3

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

1

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

1,
3

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

5,
7

Page 24



A
pp

en
di

x 
1

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

- 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

20
08

-2
00

9
A

pr
il 

20
08

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
A

F
E

TY
C

o
d

e
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

G
o

o
d

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
20

07
-2

00
8 

Y
ea

r-
E

n
d

20
08

-2
00

9 
T

ar
g

et
20

08
-2

00
9 

A
ct

u
al

T
ra

ff
ic

 
L

ig
h

t

N
I2

0
N

um
be

r 
of

 'A
ss

au
lts

 w
ith

 le
ss

 s
er

io
us

 in
ju

ry
' (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ra

ci
al

ly
 a

nd
 r

el
ig

io
us

ly
 a

gg
ra

va
te

d)
 o

ffe
nc

es
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

as
 a

 p
ro

xy
 fo

r 
al

co
ho

l r
el

at
ed

 v
io

le
nt

 o
ffe

nc
es

.
Lo

w
 N

um
be

r
5.

60
5.

36
6.

09
R

ed

B
V

12
6

D
om

es
tic

 b
ur

gl
ar

ie
s 

pe
r 

ye
ar

, p
er

 1
,0

00
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
in

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
.

Lo
w

 N
um

be
r

8.
60

8.
51

7.
60

G
re

en

B
V

12
7a

V
io

le
nt

 c
rim

e 
pe

r 
ye

ar
,1

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
.

Lo
w

 N
um

be
r

12
.3

0
12

.1
8

11
.2

0
G

re
en

B
V

12
7b

R
ob

be
rie

s 
pe

r 
ye

ar
, p

er
 1

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
.

Lo
w

 N
um

be
r

0.
20

0.
19

0.
20

R
ed

B
V

12
8

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r,
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ar
ea

.
Lo

w
 N

um
be

r
7.

30
7.

23
8.

40
R

ed
66 6

L
in

k 
to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 T

h
em

e

6 6

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



K
ey

:
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 A

G
re

en
S

av
in

gs
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
/lo

w
 

ris
k

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
S

E
 B

U
D

G
E

T
 

S
A

V
IN

G
S

/E
F

F
IC

IE
N

C
IE

S
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 
20

08
/0

9 
- 

20
10

/1
1 

(V
28

)
A

m
b

er
T

en
ta

tiv
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

- 
fu

rt
he

r 
w

or
k 

re
qu

ire
d/

m
ed

iu
m

 r
is

k

U
p

d
at

ed
 J

u
ly

 2
00

9
R

ed

S
av

in
gs

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 
C

ou
nc

il 
po

lic
y 

or
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ch

an
ge

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y/

hi
gh

 
ris

k
O

rg
in

al
R

ev
is

ed
D

ep
t

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
av

in
g

s
S

ta
tu

s
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
P

ro
g

re
ss

R
is

k 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t
£

£
£

£
£

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
W

o
rk

st
re

am

F
 &

 C
S

B
en

ef
its

/L
oc

al
 T

ax
at

io
n 

- 
H

ow
de

n 
Li

nk
G

re
en

8,
54

0
   

   
  

8,
54

0
   

   
  

8,
54

0
   

   
  

8,
54

0
   

   
   

   
  

8,
54

0
   

   
   

   
  

C
om

pl
et

ed

F
 &

 C
S

R
at

io
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
 te

le
ph

on
e 

ac
co

un
ts

A
m

b
er

-
   

   
   

   
3,

80
0

   
   

  
1,

90
0

   
   

  
3,

80
0

   
   

   
   

  
3,

80
0

   
   

   
   

  
D

el
ay

s 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
du

e 
to

 
po

te
nt

ia
l n

ew
 c

on
tr

ac
t (

se
e 

te
le

ph
on

e 
ca

lls
 b

el
ow

)

M
ed

iu
m

 -
 N

Y
C

C
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

in
 

pl
ac

e 
al

th
ou

gh
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
 in

 jo
in

in
g.

F
 &

 C
S

E
-G

ov
 -

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 c
os

ts
 o

n 
D

IP
 

ha
rd

w
ar

e
G

re
en

8,
00

0
   

   
  

8,
00

0
   

   
  

8,
00

0
   

   
  

8,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

8,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

C
om

pl
et

ed

F
 &

 C
S

IS
P

G
re

en
5,

00
0

   
   

  
20

,0
00

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
 &

 C
S

G
as

/E
le

ct
ric

ty
G

re
en

25
,0

00
- 

   
  

20
,0

00
   

   
25

,0
00

- 
   

  
25

,0
00

- 
   

   
   

  
25

,0
00

- 
   

   
   

  
C

om
pl

et
ed

 -
 h

is
to

ric
 e

rr
or

 in
 

bi
lli

ng
 fo

r 
C

iv
ic

 C
en

tr
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 

an
nu

al
 u

nd
er

ch
ar

ge
 o

f £
45

k

D
ev

E
xp

an
de

d 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

tr
ol

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

G
re

en
10

,6
10

   
   

10
,6

10
   

   
10

,6
10

   
   

10
,6

10
   

   
   

   
10

,6
10

   
   

   
   

C
om

pl
et

ed

D
ev

E
xp

an
de

d 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
on

tr
ol

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

R
ed

-
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

R
ic

hm
on

d 
cu

rr
en

tly
 o

n 
ho

ld
. 

D
is

cu
si

on
s 

du
e 

to
 s

ta
rt

 a
ga

in
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
09

. N
ot

 a
ch

ie
va

bl
e 

20
09

/1
0

H
ig

h 
-d

ue
 to

 c
ur

re
nt

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

cl
im

at
e 

an
d 

its
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

fin
an

ci
al

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

.

H
R

O
n-

lin
e 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t a

dv
er

tis
in

g
G

re
en

10
,0

00
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

P
ol

ic
y/

P
er

f
P

la
in

 E
ng

lis
h 

C
am

pa
ig

n
G

re
en

3,
00

0
   

   
  

3,
00

0
   

   
  

3,
00

0
   

   
  

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

C
om

pl
et

ed
F

 &
 C

S
E

xp
an

si
on

 o
f A

ud
it 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

G
re

en
3,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
 &

 C
S

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 p

os
ta

l p
ro

vi
de

r
A

m
b

er
-

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
  

6,
30

0
   

   
  

8,
40

0
   

   
   

   
  

8,
40

0
   

   
   

   
  

C
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

e 
ex

er
ci

se
 -

 fi
gu

re
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
fin

al
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

nt
ra

ct
 a

w
ar

d

M
ed

iu
m

 -
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 C
Y

C
 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g.

F
 &

 C
S

C
ha

ng
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 fo
r 

te
le

ph
on

e 
ca

lls
A

m
b

er
-

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
   

   
9,

00
0

   
   

  
18

,0
00

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
   

   
   

   
N

Y
C

C
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

av
ai

la
bl

e
M

ed
iu

m
 -

 N
Y

C
C

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

al
th

ou
gh

 s
til

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
in

g 
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

 in
 jo

in
in

g.

P
ag

e 
1

Page 27



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£
F

 &
 C

S
C

en
tr

al
 P

ho
to

co
py

in
g/

pr
in

tin
g

A
m

b
er

-
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

15
,0

00
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
P

rin
t A

ud
it 

re
ce

iv
ed

 -
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

- 
ai

m
ed

 to
 

im
pl

em
en

t b
y 

30
 J

un
e 

20
09

 b
ut

 
ch

an
ge

 in
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

su
pp

lie
rs

 
w

ill
 d

el
ay

 th
is

.

M
ed

iu
m

 -
 d

el
ay

s 
du

e 
to

 r
el

et
 o

f 
N

Y
C

C
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

co
nt

ra
ct

P
ag

e 
2

Page 28



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£
F

 &
 C

S
In

su
ra

nc
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 -
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

H
D

C
/R

D
C

 (
se

e 
sh

ar
ed

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
se

rv
ic

e 
be

lo
w

 -
 r

ef
 1

7)

A
m

b
er

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
S

ta
rt

 d
el

ay
ed

 u
nt

il 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
09

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

te
 w

ith
 

H
D

C
/R

D
C

 -
 b

ro
ke

r 
ap

po
in

te
d 

an
d 

te
nd

er
 a

dv
er

tis
ed

H
ig

h 
- 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
a 

jo
in

t c
on

tr
ac

t -
 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

on
ly

 in
 e

ar
ly

 s
ta

ge
s.

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

C
om

bi
ne

d 
S

tr
ee

t S
ce

ne
 C

on
tr

ac
t/A

lte
rn

at
e 

B
in

 C
ol

le
ct

io
ns

A
m

b
er

-
   

   
   

   
20

0,
00

0
   

 
22

2,
00

0
   

 
62

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
80

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 c

om
pl

et
ed

M
ed

iu
m

 -
 te

nd
er

 p
ric

es
 s

ho
w

 a
 

sa
vi

ng
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 o

ur
 ta

rg
et

 
al

th
ou

gh
 c

on
tr

ac
t s

til
l t

o 
be

 
co

nc
lu

de
d.

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

Le
is

ur
e 

T
ru

st
 N

N
D

R
 &

 V
A

T
 S

av
in

gs
A

m
b

er
-

   
   

   
   

11
5,

00
0

   
 

10
7,

00
0

   
 

23
3,

00
0

   
   

   
 

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

C
la

rif
ic

at
io

n 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 
m

ob
ili

sa
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

be
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 w
ith

 p
re

fe
rr

ed
 b

id
de

r

M
ed

iu
m

 -
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

 b
id

de
rs

 p
ric

es
 

sh
ow

 a
 s

av
in

g 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 o

ur
 

ta
rg

et
 -

 ta
rg

et
 s

ta
rt

 d
at

e 
no

w
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
09

C
or

po
ra

te
C

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

sh
ar

ed
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 (

se
e 

In
su

ra
nc

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
* 

ab
ov

e 
- 

re
f 1

4)
   

   
   

   
   

 
N

o
te

: 
T

h
e 

b
al

an
ce

 o
f 

th
is

 t
ar

g
et

 w
ill

 
re

d
u

ce
 a

s 
in

d
iv

id
u

al
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 (
O

ri
g

in
al

 t
ar

g
et

s 
20

09
/1

0 
£5

0k
 a

n
d

 2
01

0/
11

 o
n

w
ar

d
s 

£1
00

k)
.

R
ed

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

25
,4

50
   

   
42

,6
00

   
   

   
   

42
,6

00
   

   
   

   
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

fr
om

 
A

ug
us

t/S
ep

te
m

be
r 

09
 a

lth
ou

gh
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
fin

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
bu

si
ne

ss
 c

as
e 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 

ha
ve

 y
et

 to
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 b
y 

al
l 

pa
rt

ne
rs

.

H
ig

h 
- 

sa
vi

ng
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
sh

ar
ed

 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

av
in

gs
 -

 s
up

pl
ie

r 
sp

en
d 

an
al

ys
is

 s
ug

ge
st

s 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 £

1.
4m

 p
.a

. f
or

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
in

iti
at

iv
es

. £
10

0k
 a

s 
a 

ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 is
 n

ot
 u

nr
ea

so
na

bl
e 

bu
t t

he
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 th
e 

sa
vi

ng
 is

 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 p
re

di
ct

. W
ou

ld
 e

xp
ec

t 
so

m
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 in

 
fir

st
 y

ea
r 

- 
pe

si
m

is
tic

 v
ie

w
 c

ou
ld

 
ex

pe
ct

 £
10

k 
- 

£2
0k

.

F
 &

 C
S

P
ar

tn
er

in
g 

R
ev

s 
an

d 
B

en
s

R
ed

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
ou

tc
om

es
 fr

om
 B

P
R

 
pr

oj
ec

t b
ef

or
e 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 th
is

 
w

or
k.

 O
pt

io
ns

 a
pp

ra
is

al
 to

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t b

y 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0.

H
ig

h 
- 

sa
vi

ng
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
 w

ill
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

r 
bu

t c
ou

ld
 lo

ok
 to

 o
ut

so
ur

ce
 

se
rv

ic
e 

- 
op

tio
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l w
ou

ld
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t. 
12

 m
on

th
s 

is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
bu

t a
ch

ie
va

bl
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

no
t k

no
w

n.

F
 &

 C
S

P
ar

tn
er

in
g 

B
ac

k 
O

ffi
ce

 S
up

po
rt

 
(A

cc
ou

nt
an

cy
/C

en
tr

al
 A

dm
in

/IC
T

 e
tc

)
R

ed
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
E

xp
lo

rin
g 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

al
ig

n 
F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
s 

w
.e

.f.
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

10
. P

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

to
 b

e 
ex

pl
or

ed
 o

nc
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

H
ig

h 
- 

F
M

S
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t p

ro
je

ct
 

un
de

rw
ay

. T
hi

s 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 
sa

ve
 a

pp
ro

x 
£7

k 
- 

£8
k 

p.
a.

 p
lu

s 
fu

rt
he

r 
sa

vi
ng

s 
fr

om
 jo

in
t h

os
tin

g 
no

t y
et

 q
ua

nt
ifi

ed
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 p
av

e 
th

e 
w

ay
 fo

r 
a 

sh
ar

ed
 F

in
an

ce
 

se
rv

ic
e.

 V
al

ue
 o

f s
av

in
gs

 a
re

 
sp

ec
ul

at
iv

e 
at

 th
is

 s
ta

ge
 a

nd
 w

ill
 

no
t b

e 
fu

lly
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

if 
ot

he
r 

co
un

ci
ls

 a
re

 n
ot

 w
ill

in
g 

to
 p

ar
tn

er
.

P
ag

e 
3

Page 29



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£
Le

ga
l/D

S
S

ha
re

d 
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
R

ed
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

A
sp

ira
tio

na
l a

t t
hi

s 
st

ag
e

H
ig

h 
- 

sa
vi

ng
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
 w

ill
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

r 
bu

t c
ou

ld
 lo

ok
 to

 o
ut

so
ur

ce
 

se
rv

ic
e 

- 
op

tio
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l w
ou

ld
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t. 
12

 m
on

th
s 

is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
bu

t a
ch

ie
va

bl
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

no
t k

no
w

n.

F
 &

 C
S

B
ro

w
se

al
ou

d 
S

ub
sc

rip
tio

n
G

re
en

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
  

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

of
 3

 y
r 

su
bs

cr
ip

tio
n 

- 
co

m
pl

et
ed

F
 &

 C
S

N
ew

 s
ta

tio
ne

ry
 c

on
tr

ac
t

G
re

en
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
9,

38
0

   
   

  
9,

38
0

   
   

   
   

  
9,

38
0

   
   

   
   

  
C

om
pl

et
ed

Lo
w

 -
 N

ew
 fr

am
ew

or
nt

ra
ct

 le
t 

w
.e

.f.
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

09
 -

 3
0%

 s
av

in
g 

ac
hi

ev
ab

le
F

 &
 C

S
N

ew
 T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t A

dv
is

or
y 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
on

tr
ac

t
A

m
b

er
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
2,

25
0

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
N

ew
 c

on
tr

ac
t d

ue
 to

 s
ta

rt
 1

 J
ul

y 
20

09
M

ed
iu

m
 -

 T
en

de
rs

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

bu
t s

av
in

g 
ex

pe
ct

ed

T
o

ta
l P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t

23
,1

50
   

   
44

8,
95

0
   

 
45

6,
93

0
   

 
1,

08
3,

83
0

   
   

 
1,

42
3,

83
0

   
   

 

P
ag

e 
4

Page 30



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£
T

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

 W
o

rk
st

re
am

F
 &

 C
S

B
P

R
 -

 E
-G

ov
 

G
re

en
34

,0
00

   
   

34
,0

00
   

   
34

,0
00

   
   

34
,0

00
   

   
   

   
34

,0
00

   
   

   
   

C
om

pl
et

ed

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

E
H

 T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n

G
re

en
22

,5
00

   
   

22
,5

00
   

   
22

,5
00

   
   

22
,5

00
   

   
   

   
22

,5
00

   
   

   
   

C
om

pl
et

ed

D
ev

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

 -
 O

n-
lin

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
A

m
b

er
-

   
   

   
   

3,
13

0
   

   
  

3,
13

0
   

   
  

3,
13

0
   

   
   

   
  

3,
13

0
   

   
   

   
  

S
av

in
gs

 in
 p

rin
tin

g 
an

d 
po

st
ag

e 
co

st
s 

- 
pr

oj
ec

t d
el

ay
ed

 d
ue

 to
 

te
ch

ni
ca

l d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s

Lo
w

 -
 lo

w
 v

al
ue

 s
av

in
g 

- 
ex

pe
ct

 
te

hn
ic

al
 d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
to

 b
e 

ov
er

co
m

e.
F

 &
 C

S
B

P
R

 -
 C

en
tr

al
 A

dm
in

A
m

b
er

20
,0

00
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

20
,6

50
   

   
21

,3
00

   
   

   
   

21
,3

00
   

   
   

   
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 h
ol

di
ng

 2
 v

ac
an

ci
es

 
fil

le
d 

w
ith

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
(s

ee
 s

ca
nn

in
g 

be
lo

w
) 

- 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

Lo
w

 -
 r

es
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

la
ns

 s
ho

w
 

sa
vi

ng
 a

ch
ie

va
bl

e 
- 

va
ca

nc
ie

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 h
el

d.

F
 &

 C
S

B
P

R
 -

 L
oc

al
 T

ax
at

io
n 

an
d 

B
en

s
A

m
b

er
30

,0
00

   
   

60
,0

00
   

   
69

,9
00

   
   

79
,9

00
   

   
   

   
79

,9
00

   
   

   
   

R
ec

ru
iti

ng
 to

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

- 
aw

ai
tin

g 
fin

al
 c

os
tin

gs
Lo

w
 -

 a
lth

ou
gh

 n
ot

 y
et

 fu
lly

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

a 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

t l
ea

st
 £

74
k.

D
ev

B
P

R
 -

 P
la

nn
in

g
A

m
b

er
-

   
   

   
   

55
,0

00
   

   
55

,0
00

   
   

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

V
al

ue
ad

di
ng

.c
om

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 th

e 
B

P
R

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
al

on
gs

id
e 

an
 in

-
ho

us
e 

te
am

. T
he

 s
av

in
gs

 
ac

hi
ev

ab
le

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 w
ill

 
be

 r
ef

in
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
be

co
m

e 
cl

ea
re

r.
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
09

 b
ut

 in
iti

al
 w

or
k 

su
gg

es
ts

 £
55

k 
ac

hi
ev

ab
le

 in
 

sh
or

t t
er

m

M
ed

iu
m

 -
 B

P
R

 te
am

 in
di

ca
te

 th
at

 
£5

5k
 is

 a
ch

ie
va

bl
e 

in
 s

ho
rt

 te
rm

. 
Lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 s
av

in
gs

 w
ill

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
 

fu
rt

he
r 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 
pr

ac
tic

es
.

C
en

tr
al

 
C

or
e

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f J

M
T

 S
up

po
rt

G
re

en
6,

00
0

   
   

  
12

,0
00

   
   

12
,0

00
   

   
12

,0
00

   
   

   
   

12
,0

00
   

   
   

   
V

ac
an

cy
 w

.e
.f.

 m
id

 J
ul

y 
- 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
am

en
de

d 
on

 a
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 b

as
is

 -
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
20

09
C

en
tr

al
 

C
or

e
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f C
or

po
ra

te
 S

tr
uc

tu
re

s
A

m
b

er
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
58

,0
00

- 
   

  
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
D

ra
ft 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
- 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 
es

tim
at

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
co

st
s 

at
 to

p 
of

 
gr

ad
e 

an
d 

ne
t o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 r
un

ni
ng

 
co

st
s

M
ed

iu
m

 -
 p

la
ns

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

al
th

ou
gh

 e
xa

ct
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 s
av

in
g 

no
t 

ye
t c

le
ar

F
 &

 C
S

B
P

R
 -

 IC
T

A
m

b
er

15
,0

00
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

30
,0

00
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
R

et
ire

m
en

t o
f 1

 o
ffi

ce
r 

Ju
ly

 2
00

8 
- 

re
vi

se
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 

fo
rm

ul
at

ed
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
pp

ro
va

l

Lo
w

 -
 r

es
tr

uc
tu

re
 p

la
ns

 s
ho

w
 

sa
vi

ng
 a

ch
ie

va
bl

e 
- 

va
ca

nc
y 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 h

el
d.

P
ag

e 
5

Page 31



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£
F

 &
 C

S
B

P
R

 -
 A

cc
ou

nt
an

cy
R

ed
-

   
   

   
   

30
,0

00
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 h

ol
di

ng
 2

 v
ac

an
ci

es
 

fil
le

d 
w

ith
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

- 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

to
 fo

llo
w

 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

H
ig

h 
- 

co
rp

or
at

e 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pl

an
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

sa
vi

ng
 a

va
ila

bl
e

F
 &

 C
S

B
P

R
 -

 S
ca

nn
in

g

A
m

b
er

-
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

S
ee

 C
en

tr
al

 A
dm

in

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

B
P

R
 -

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
G

re
en

5,
69

0
   

   
  

9,
57

0
   

   
  

11
,3

80
   

   
11

,3
80

   
   

   
   

11
,3

80
   

   
   

   
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
a 

va
ca

nc
y 

1 
S

E
H

O
 h

as
 

be
en

 r
em

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
- 

pr
iv

at
e 

ho
us

in
g 

gr
an

t w
or

k 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 H
ou

si
ng

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t A
ge

nc
y 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
w

or
k 

ab
so

rb
ed

 w
ith

in
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
(A

nn
ua

l S
av

in
g 

of
 

£1
13

80
 a

ch
ei

ve
d)

 F
ur

th
er

 
ex

am
in

at
io

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

un
de

rw
ay

Lo
w

 -
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 s
av

in
gs

 a
re

 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

fin
di

ng
 w

ill
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

rs
. 

S
ho

rt
 te

rm
 s

av
in

gs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
.

H
R

B
P

R
 -

 H
R

R
ed

-
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
D

is
cu

ss
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l o

f a
 s

ha
re

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 d
is

tr
ic

ts
 in

 
N

or
th

 Y
or

ks
hi

re

H
ig

h 
- 

sa
vi

ng
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
 w

ill
in

g 
pa

rt
ne

r 
bu

t c
ou

ld
 lo

ok
 to

 o
ut

so
ur

ce
 

se
rv

ic
e.

 1
2 

m
on

th
s 

is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
bu

t 
ac

hi
ev

ab
le

 s
av

in
gs

 n
ot

 k
no

w
n.

F
 &

 C
S

C
or

po
ra

te
 D

eb
t R

ec
ov

er
y 

te
am

R
ed

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
T

o 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 R

ev
s 

an
d 

B
en

s 
B

P
R

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

H
ig

h 
- 

pl
an

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 m
er

ge
 

re
ve

nu
es

 a
nd

 d
eb

t r
ec

ov
er

y 
fu

ct
io

ns
 u

nd
er

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
m

an
an

ge
m

en
t s

tr
uc

tu
re

. A
 B

P
R

 
ex

er
ci

se
 w

ill
 fo

llo
w

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 s

tr
ea

m
lin

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
re

le
as

in
g 

st
af

f s
ta

ff 
sa

vi
ng

s 
- 

un
ab

le
 to

 a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

qu
an

tif
y 

sa
vi

ng
 u

nt
il 

th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.
P

ol
ic

y/
P

er
f

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

in
k 

O
ffi

ce
r 

su
pp

or
t t

o 
th

e 
C

IP
s

G
re

en
3,

08
0

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

om
pl

et
ed

 o
ne

-o
ff 

sa
vi

ng
 in

 
08

/0
9

T
o

ta
l T

ra
n

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

13
6,

27
0

   
 

28
6,

20
0

   
 

23
5,

56
0

   
 

38
9,

21
0

   
   

   
 

38
9,

21
0

   
   

   
 

P
ag

e 
6

Page 32



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
W

o
rk

st
re

am

H
ou

si
ng

/ 
P

S
B

ar
lb

y 
D

ep
ot

A
m

b
er

-
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
O

pt
io

ns
 to

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 P

 &
 R

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

T
 &

 F
 G

ro
up

H
ig

h 
- 

cu
rr

en
t e

co
no

m
ic

 c
lim

at
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 d
el

ay
 s

al
e 

of
 d

ep
ot

.

T
o

ta
l A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   

P
ag

e 
7

Page 33



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
 W

o
rk

st
re

am

F
 &

 C
S

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 (
N

et
)

G
re

en
48

,0
00

   
   

48
,0

00
   

   
48

,0
00

   
   

48
,0

00
   

   
   

   
48

,0
00

   
   

   
   

C
om

pl
et

ed

F
 &

 C
S

F
ire

w
al

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t
G

re
en

18
,0

00
   

   
18

,0
00

   
   

18
,0

00
   

   
18

,0
00

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
 &

 C
S

IC
T

 -
 D

ec
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 C

itr
ix

 S
er

ve
r

G
re

en
3,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
 &

 C
S

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

 P
os

ta
ge

G
re

en
2,

32
0

   
   

  
2,

32
0

   
   

  
2,

32
0

   
   

  
2,

32
0

   
   

   
   

  
2,

32
0

   
   

   
   

  
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
 &

 C
S

C
ou

rt
 C

os
ts

 In
co

m
e

G
re

en
10

,0
00

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

C
om

pl
et

ed
 -

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f i

nc
om

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 0

7/
08

 a
nd

 1
st

 1
/2

 y
ea

r 
of

 0
8/

09
 s

ug
ge

st
s 

th
at

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ar
e 

ac
hi

ev
ab

le
 -

 a
w

ai
tin

g 
ye

ar
 e

nd
 fi

gu
re

s

F
 &

 C
S

2n
d 

C
la

ss
 P

os
t

G
re

en
6,

00
0

   
   

  
6,

00
0

   
   

  
6,

00
0

   
   

  
6,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
6,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
C

om
pl

et
ed

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

C
ar

 P
ar

k 
In

co
m

e
G

re
en

24
,0

00
   

   
24

,0
00

   
   

24
,0

00
   

   
24

,0
00

   
   

   
   

24
,0

00
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

P
ow

er
 S

ta
tio

n 
C

on
su

lta
nc

y
G

re
en

5,
00

0
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

C
om

pl
et

ed

F
 &

 C
S

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nc
om

e/
T

re
as

ur
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

G
re

en
13

,5
00

   
   

8,
00

0
   

   
  

15
,0

00
   

   
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
In

-h
ou

se
 in

ve
st

m
en

t t
o 

co
m

m
en

ce
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

08
 -

 fe
es

 to
 

be
 m

on
ito

re
d

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

R
ec

yc
lin

g
G

re
en

44
,5

00
   

   
44

,5
00

   
   

44
,5

00
   

   
44

,5
00

   
   

   
   

44
,5

00
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

F
 &

 C
S

E
xc

es
s 

In
ve

st
m

en
t I

nt
er

es
t

G
re

en
32

6,
00

0
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

om
pl

et
ed

H
ou

si
ng

/ 
P

S
T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 M

as
t

A
m

b
er

-
   

   
   

   
13

,0
00

   
   

13
,0

00
   

   
13

,0
00

   
   

   
   

13
,0

00
   

   
   

   
F

or
m

ul
at

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

s
H

ig
h 

- 
du

e 
to

 c
ur

re
nt

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

cl
im

at
e.

C
or

po
ra

te
C

ar
 A

llo
w

an
ce

s
G

re
en

13
,5

00
   

   
10

,5
00

   
   

13
,5

00
   

   
13

,5
00

   
   

   
   

13
,5

00
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

 -
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 £
3k

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 a

bo
ve

 £
10

.5
k 

ta
rg

et
E

nv
/L

ei
su

re
E

ne
rg

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
R

ed
-

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
   

   
9,

00
0

   
   

  
18

,0
00

   
   

   
   

18
,0

00
   

   
   

   
N

eg
ot

ia
tin

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
N

or
th

 
Y

or
ks

hi
re

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 E
ne

rg
y 

G
ro

up
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 jo
in

t p
os

t t
o 

dr
iv

e 
en

er
gy

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 fo

rw
ar

d.
 N

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
pr

og
re

ss
 y

et

H
ig

h 
- 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
an

 o
ffi

ce
r 

re
so

ur
ce

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 in

iti
at

iv
es

.

T
o

ta
l V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
51

3,
82

0
   

 
21

0,
32

0
   

 
21

1,
32

0
   

 
22

0,
32

0
   

   
   

 
22

0,
32

0
   

   
   

 

P
ag

e 
8

Page 34



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£

B
as

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 R
ev

ie
w

 W
o

rk
st

re
am

F
 &

 C
S

P
re

 1
97

4 
P

en
si

on
 C

os
ts

 (
W

es
t Y

or
ks

hi
re

 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d)

G
re

en
30

,0
00

   
   

30
,0

00
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

C
om

pl
et

ed

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

R
ef

us
e 

C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

G
ro

un
ds

 M
ai

nt
 e

tc
 

C
on

tr
ac

t I
nf

la
tio

n
G

re
en

29
,8

50
   

   
29

,8
50

   
   

29
,8

50
   

   
29

,8
50

   
   

   
   

29
,8

50
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

 -
 a

lth
ou

gh
 r

is
in

g 
fu

el
 

co
st

s 
m

ay
 n

eg
at

e 
th

is
 s

av
in

g 

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

H
ul

l &
 G

oo
le

 P
or

t H
ea

lth
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

Le
vy

G
re

en
16

,4
50

   
   

17
,2

70
   

   
17

,2
70

   
   

18
,1

30
   

   
   

   
18

,1
30

   
   

   
   

C
om

pl
et

ed

H
ou

si
ng

/ 
P

S
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s

G
re

en
10

,0
00

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

C
om

pl
et

ed

C
or

po
ra

te
20

07
/0

8 
P

ay
 A

w
ar

d
G

re
en

34
,0

00
   

   
34

,0
00

   
   

34
,0

00
   

   
34

,0
00

   
   

   
   

34
,0

00
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

  

C
or

po
ra

te
20

08
/0

9 
P

ay
 A

w
ar

d
G

re
en

17
,5

00
   

   
35

,0
00

   
   

17
,5

00
   

   
17

,5
00

   
   

   
   

17
,5

00
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

C
or

po
ra

te
B

as
e 

bu
dg

et
 r

ev
ie

w
G

re
en

56
7,

00
0

   
 

23
8,

49
0

   
 

33
5,

71
0

   
 

33
5,

71
0

   
   

   
 

33
5,

71
0

   
   

   
 

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 F

ar
es

 s
pe

nd
 fo

r 
20

08
/0

9 
co

nf
irm

ed
.

M
ed

iu
m

 -
 s

av
in

gs
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

 -
 in

cl
ud

e 
sa

vi
ng

s 
on

 
ne

w
 s

ch
em

e 
co

nc
es

si
on

ar
y 

fa
re

s,
 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ch
an

ge
 

as
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

ed
 in

. 

C
or

po
ra

te
D

el
ay

 o
f  

2 
w

ee
ks

 in
 fi

lli
ng

 v
ac

an
t p

os
ts

R
ed

-
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

   
   

15
,0

00
   

   
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
N

ot
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
as

 y
et

 -
 

av
er

ag
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pe
r 

w
ee

k 
£4

23
 

(£
53

2 
w

ith
 o

/c
) 

H
ig

h 
- 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 v
ac

an
t p

os
t. 

C
ou

ld
 b

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
.

C
or

po
ra

te
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 b

ud
ge

t
R

ed
-

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

C
ut

 fr
om

 c
en

tr
al

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ud

ge
t

H
ig

h 
- 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 b
ud

ge
t m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 
sh

or
tfa

ll 
in

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f s

ta
ff 

to
 m

ee
t 

ch
al

le
ng

es
 a

he
ad

.

C
or

po
ra

te
20

09
/1

0 
P

ay
 A

w
ar

d
R

ed
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
23

0,
57

0
   

 
23

0,
57

0
   

   
   

 
23

0,
57

0
   

   
   

 
B

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

3%
 p

ay
 a

w
ar

d 
- 

no
 

aw
ar

d 
on

 o
ffe

r
H

ig
h 

- 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

fin
al

is
at

io
n 

- 
so

m
e 

aw
ar

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
gr

an
te

d
T

o
ta

l B
as

e 
B

u
d

g
et

 R
ev

ie
w

70
4,

80
0

   
 

41
4,

61
0

   
 

72
4,

90
0

   
 

72
5,

76
0

   
   

   
 

72
5,

76
0

   
   

   
 

P
ag

e 
9

Page 35



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£
D

is
cr

et
io

n
ar

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 W

o
rk

st
re

am

F
 &

 C
S

C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 F

ar
es

 -
 R

ai
l T

ra
ve

l
G

re
en

20
,0

00
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
C

om
pl

et
ed

P
ol

ic
y/

P
er

f
H

ea
lth

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

G
re

en
5,

00
0

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
C

om
pl

et
ed

C
or

po
ra

te
F

ee
s 

an
d 

C
ha

rg
es

 2
00

8/
09

G
re

en
53

,0
00

   
   

12
5,

00
0

   
 

12
5,

00
0

   
 

12
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

12
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 a

lth
ou

gh
 in

co
m

e 
w

ill
 

be
 m

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

qu
ar

te
rly

 
bu

dg
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ep
or

ts

D
ev

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 c

ha
rg

e 
fo

r 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

ad
vi

ce
R

ed
-

   
   

   
   

30
,0

00
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
35

,0
00

   
   

   
   

Id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 a
n 

op
tio

n 
as

 p
ar

t o
f 

20
09

/1
0 

M
T

F
P

H
ig

h 
- 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
po

lit
ic

al
 d

ec
is

io
n.

Le
ga

l/D
S

R
ev

ie
w

 d
is

cr
et

io
na

ry
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

ch
ar

ge
s 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

br
ea

ke
ve

n
G

re
en

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

C
om

pl
et

ed

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

C
lo

su
re

/tr
an

sf
er

 o
f M

ar
ke

ts
R

ed
-

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
   

   
3,

67
0

- 
   

   
 

3,
42

0
- 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

42
0

- 
   

   
   

   
 

P
en

di
ng

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
B

oa
rd

S
av

in
g 

no
t a

ch
ie

va
bl

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
is

 to
 c

lo
se

 
T

ad
ca

st
er

 a
nd

 tr
an

sf
er

 S
el

by
 to

 
T

ow
n 

C
ou

nc
il 

at
 a

 n
et

 c
os

t o
f 

ar
ou

nd
 £

3.
4k

 p
.a

.
E

nv
/L

ei
su

re
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 W

as
te

 In
co

m
e

A
m

b
er

-
   

   
   

   
13

,8
00

13
,8

00
27

,6
00

27
,6

00
B

id
 a

cc
ep

te
d

M
ed

iu
m

 -
 in

co
m

e 
to

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d.

E
nv

/L
ei

su
re

A
bb

ey
 L

ei
su

re
 C

en
tr

e 
In

co
m

e
G

re
en

-
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
E

xc
es

s 
in

co
m

e 
ov

er
 b

ud
ge

t d
ue

 
to

 g
ra

nt
 fo

r 
ov

er
 6

0'
s 

sw
im

m
in

g

T
o

ta
l D

is
cr

et
io

n
ar

y 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
78

,0
00

   
   

21
8,

80
0

   
 

20
5,

13
0

   
 

22
4,

18
0

   
   

   
 

21
4,

18
0

   
   

   
 

T
o

ta
l G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
 S

av
in

g
s

1,
45

6,
04

0
 

1,
58

8,
88

0
 

1,
84

3,
84

0
 

2,
66

3,
30

0
   

   
 

2,
99

3,
30

0
   

   
 

P
ag

e 
10

Page 36



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£

T
ar

ge
t p

er
 M

T
F

S
 2

00
9-

19
 (

V
2.

2)
93

3,
35

0
   

 
1,

56
7,

73
0

 
1,

56
7,

73
0

 
2,

22
8,

60
0

   
   

 
2,

22
8,

60
0

   
   

 
A

dd
: 2

00
9/

10
 in

 y
ea

r 
gr

ow
th

 r
e 

ra
il 

ca
rd

s
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
9,

00
0

   
   

  
9,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
9,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
H

ea
dr

oo
m

32
0,

00
0

   
 

64
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

96
2,

40
0

   
   

   
 

N
ew

 T
ar

g
et

93
3,

35
0

   
 

1,
56

7,
73

0
 

1,
89

6,
73

0
 

2,
87

7,
60

0
   

   
 

3,
20

0,
00

0
   

   
 

*
S

h
o

rt
fa

ll/
S

u
rp

lu
s 

(-
/+

)
52

2,
69

0
   

 
21

,1
50

   
   

52
,8

90
- 

   
  

21
4,

30
0

- 
   

   
   

20
6,

70
0

- 
   

   
   

G
re

en
 S

av
in

g
s

1,
39

1,
04

0
 

89
5,

15
0

   
 

95
6,

56
0

   
 

95
7,

42
0

   
   

   
 

94
7,

42
0

   
   

   
 

A
m

b
er

 S
av

in
g

s
65

,0
00

   
   

57
0,

73
0

   
 

54
0,

93
0

   
 

1,
27

6,
13

0
   

   
 

1,
47

3,
13

0
   

   
 

R
ed

 S
av

in
g

s
-

   
   

   
   

12
3,

00
0

   
 

34
6,

35
0

   
 

42
9,

75
0

   
   

   
 

57
2,

75
0

   
   

   
 

T
o

ta
l

1,
45

6,
04

0
 

1,
58

8,
88

0
 

1,
84

3,
84

0
 

2,
66

3,
30

0
   

   
 

2,
99

3,
30

0
   

   
 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

b
y 

W
o

rk
st

re
am

3 
Y

ea
r 

T
ar

g
et

s 
p

er
 E

 &
 S

 
S

tr
at

eg
y:

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
23

,1
50

   
   

44
8,

95
0

   
 

45
6,

93
0

   
 

1,
08

3,
83

0
   

   
 

1,
42

3,
83

0
   

   
 

1,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n
13

6,
27

0
   

 
28

6,
20

0
   

 
23

5,
56

0
   

 
38

9,
21

0
   

   
   

 
38

9,
21

0
   

   
   

 
55

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
V

al
ue

 fo
r 

M
on

ey
51

3,
82

0
   

 
21

0,
32

0
   

 
21

1,
32

0
   

 
22

0,
32

0
   

   
   

 
22

0,
32

0
   

   
   

 
25

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

B
as

e 
B

ud
ge

t R
ev

ie
w

70
4,

80
0

   
 

41
4,

61
0

   
 

72
4,

90
0

   
 

72
5,

76
0

   
   

   
 

72
5,

76
0

   
   

   
 

50
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
D

is
cr

et
io

na
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
ev

ie
w

78
,0

00
   

   
21

8,
80

0
   

 
20

5,
13

0
   

 
22

4,
18

0
   

   
   

 
21

4,
18

0
   

   
   

 
30

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
o

ta
l

1,
45

6,
04

0
 

1,
58

8,
88

0
 

1,
84

3,
84

0
 

2,
66

3,
30

0
   

   
 

2,
99

3,
30

0
   

   
 

3,
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

P
ag

e 
11

Page 37



D
ep

t
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 S

av
in

g
s

S
ta

tu
s

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

P
ro

g
re

ss
R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

£
£

£
£

£

A
ch

ie
va

b
le

 S
av

in
g

s

B
es

t C
as

e 
(A

ll 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ac

hi
ev

ed
)

1,
58

8,
88

0
 

1,
84

3,
84

0
 

2,
66

3,
30

0
   

   
 

2,
99

3,
30

0
   

   
 

W
or

st
 C

as
e 

(O
nl

y 
G

re
en

 s
av

in
gs

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
)

89
5,

15
0

   
 

95
6,

56
0

   
 

95
7,

42
0

   
   

   
 

94
7,

42
0

   
   

   
 

M
id

 C
as

e 
(C

al
cu

la
ti

o
n

 u
si

n
g

 s
lid

in
g

 
sc

al
e)

G
re

en
 S

av
in

gs
 -

 1
00

%
89

5,
15

0
   

 
95

6,
56

0
   

 
95

7,
42

0
   

   
   

 
94

7,
42

0
   

   
   

 
A

m
be

r 
S

av
in

gs
 -

 7
5%

42
8,

04
8

   
 

40
5,

69
8

   
 

95
7,

09
8

   
   

   
 

1,
10

4,
84

8
   

   
 

R
ed

 S
av

in
gs

 5
0%

61
,5

00
   

   
17

3,
17

5
   

 
21

4,
87

5
   

   
   

 
28

6,
37

5
   

   
   

 
1,

38
4,

69
8

 
1,

53
5,

43
3

 
2,

12
9,

39
3

   
   

 
2,

33
8,

64
3

   
   

 

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll/

S
u

rp
lu

s 
(-

/+
) 

as
su

m
in

g
 m

id
 

ca
se

 le
ve

l o
f 

sa
vi

n
g

s
18

3,
03

3
- 

   
36

1,
29

8
- 

   
74

8,
20

8
- 

   
   

   
86

1,
35

8
- 

   
   

   

P
ag

e 
12

Page 38



BASE BUDGET REVIEW

Ongoing
Environment & Leisure
0314 Leisure Card Scheme

Miscellaneous 10,000 10,000

Housing General fund
Portholme depot
Insurance paid by landlord 10,000 10,000

HR
Training 5,000 0
Conference expenses 2,000 2,000
Personnel system 1,000 0
Miscellaneous 2,000 0

Policy and Performance
Community Link Officer 2,000 0

Legal & Democratic
Licensing
Taxi & PH Licences 10,000 10,000
Licencing Act Income 20,000 20,000

Development Services
Development Control
Photocopy 2,000 1,000
Development Control
Contract Payment to BCP 4,710

Finance & Central
Computer Service
Maintenance & Rental 8,000 8,000
Concessionary Fares
Reduction in assumed takeup 302,000 180,000 Subject to scheme take-up - will require
Council Tax Benefit close monitoring
Benefit subsidy 187,000 84,000
Customer contact centre
Security 6,000 6,000

567,000 335,710

Agreed full-
year 

saving

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

18TH JANUARY 2010 
 

 
SPATIAL PROJECT BENEFITS 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr G. Denaro 
Responsible Head of Service Deb Poole - Head of E-Government & 

Customer Services 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 At the end of 2008 the Performance Management Board requested a report 

outlining the realisation of benefits from the Spatial project for both the 
organisation and it’s customers. All departments involved in the use and 
ongoing exploitation of the systems installed as part of this project have 
been consulted prior to drafting this report. This report focuses on the 
delivery of benefits rather than efficiency savings which have been included 
as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to outline the benefits the Spatial Project has 

delivered to BDC and its customers since the completion of the project at 
the end of 2008.  

 This report is an ‘information only’ document and as such does not make 
any recommendations to the Performance Management Board. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Spatial Project was a modernisation programme aimed at providing 

staff with the systems, processes and tools to deliver improved services to 
Bromsgrove District Council’s customers.  The project has been completed 
on time and to budget and has delivered the following: 

 
• Corporate Addressing Gazetteer  
• Gazetteer Management system – Local Land and Property 

Gazetteer.  
• Environmental Health system 
• Estate/Asset Management module 
• Building Control module 
• Development Control module 
• Electoral Management system 
• Housing module 
• Licensing module 
• Land Charges module 

Agenda Item 5

Page 41



 

• Document Management system 
• Business Process Mapping 
• Mobile technologies 
• Web based access to mapping data 
• Integration to existing core applications eg: Agresso 

 
4. PROJECT BENEFITS 
 
4.1 The project has delivered a number of new systems and applications that 

have resulted in improved access to information and services for our 
customers. These customer benefits include: 

  
The provision of customer accessible information direct from our web site 
regarding details of a property along with: 

• Environmental Health assessments of restaurants and catering 
outlets. 

• Planning applications including drawings and mapping information 
• Access to the Planning Portal for submission of online applications. 
• Automation of the process of viewing planning applications and 

submitting an objection. 
 

• Online Planning applications reducing the amount of data re-keying and so 
reducing the potential for errors in customer applications.   

 
• Electronic consultation both internal and external is now in place reducing 

the need to copy and distribute paper documents (time, materials and 
postage savings). This has provided capacity within Development Control 
to transfer Certificate of Lawfulness applications from Legal Services and 
record re-application enquiries. 

• The Public Access system has facilitated the successful migration of 
Planning services to the Customer Service Centre. Records can now be 
inspected online including plans and comments/objections submitted. This 
has widened public consultation (previously records could only be 
inspected by visiting the council house and then comments had to be e-
mailed separately or written and submitted via snail mail). 

• Data quality has improved allowing Planning Portal application details to 
be downloaded directly into the Uniform system thus removing the need to 
re-key information. 

• The electronic document management system (EDMS) has improved the 
availability of records negating the need to trace paper files and enabling 
sharing of information simultaneously. An information management project 
is also underway to cull the contents of paper based files, reducing 
storage costs. 

• Work monitoring and management reporting capability has improved by 
linking Microsoft Access to the Uniform system. 

Page 42



 

• Accurate property information from the Corporate Addressing Gazetteer is 
used by the Council Tax and Business Rates systems to reduce 
erroneous information being sent to customers. 

• The Estates Management module in the Uniform system is of great benefit 
because of it’s link via Local View for identifying areas of BDC land 
ownership and related details. 

• The Licensing module document templates are easier to amend (than the 
old system) and there is more flexibility with the extraction of data from the 
system. 

• The indexing system within the EDMS has helped Street Scene to better  
manage the receiving and retrieving of contracts for trade waste and 
cesspool suppliers. 

• The Uniform system has provided Street Scene with a core system which 
can be linked to other systems. It also provides us with a centralised 
database of current customer addresses.  

• The new systems have also enabled Street Scene to introduce more 
payment options for the garden waste service (telephone payments and 
web payments).   

• The provision of mobile technology is enabling staff to access their 
systems remotely to deliver services ‘in the field’ to customers.  

• The implementation of the Strand Elections system has enabled the 
successful development of the Elections Shared Service between BDC 
and RBC. The previous system could not have been used to do this. 

• The Strand Elections system is the leading software supplier for the 
checking of signatures and dates of birth required at elections for the 
postal vote process. This function worked well during the elections held in 
June 2009. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 This report does not make any recommendations and as such there are no 

financial implications.  
 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no legal implications. 
 
7. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
7.1    The project has delivered against Council Objective 2 – Improvement. 
 
 

Page 43



 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 
CONSIDERATIONS 

 
8.1 The project has now been completed and there are no longer any risks 

associated with it. 
   
9. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  Each of the business applications delivered as part of the Spatial project 

contribute to the provision of consistent, accurate and current information 
about the services delivered by BDC. It also enables BDC to provide 
services in a way and at a time to suit our customers needs. 

 
10. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 None 
 
11. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The project will enable departments to continue to exploit the systems to 

deliver value for money services. The project has enabled departments to 
change and improve the way they deliver their services including the use of 
mobile technologies, improved payment options for services, support to the 
development of shared services, transfer of services to the Customer 
Service Centre, improved online applications processes and online 
consultation.  
 

12. CLIMATE CHANGE AND CARBON IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 The project should have a positive impact on the environment as more 

information and services are provided electronically. The reduction in paper 
records, postage and printing should all contribute positively to the reduction 
of Carbon emissions.  

 
13. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  

Procurement Issues - None 
Personnel - None 
Governance/Performance Management - None 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 – None 
Policy – None 
Biodiversity - None 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

14. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder Yes 
Joint Chief Executive Yes 
Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  No 
Executive Director - Services No 
Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
Head of Service No 
Head of Financial Services No 
Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 

No 

Head of Organisational Development & HR No 
Corporate Procurement Team No 

 
15. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

None  
 
16. APPENDICES 
  
 None 
  
17. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Deb Poole – Head of E-Government & Customer Services 
E Mail:  d.poole@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881256 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

18TH JANUARY 2010 
 

 
Town Centre Regeneration Progress Report 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Del Booth, Portfolio Holder for 

Streetscene and Project Manager 
Town Centre 

Responsible Head of Service Phil Street, Executive Director 
  
 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To update the Board on the town centre project. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 To receive the report on the progress with the regeneration of Bromsgrove 

Town Centre.  
 
2.2 To note the issues that the regeneration of the town centre is and will be 

addressing and make any recommendations to Cabinet it considers 
appropriate. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Over the past two years a partnership has been formed to secure the 

regeneration of Bromsgrove town centre. The regeneration process has 
been initiated as there was wide spread agreement that the town lacked 
vitality and direction. 

 
3.2 The town centre partnership has brought has generated a sense of purpose 

and direction. The partnership is primarily between the County Council and 
the District Council, but also involves the police, fire and rescue service and 
other partners on specific projects such as the medical centre and the 
railway station. 

 
3.3 The regeneration of the town centre is a long term project that is likely to be 

pursued for at least a further five years. It is now becoming a genuine 
regeneration initiative that will attract over £30m during that period. 

 
3.4 This funding will come from the public and private sectors. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 47



 

3.5 This report and the attached appendix describes progress to date on the 
main areas of development. 

 
3.6 The town centre regeneration is being steered by a Regeneration Board that 

currently consists of County and District Council members and officers. It 
also includes representatives from West Mercia Police, West Midlands Fire 
and Rescue and there is a place for Advantage West Midlands. The Board 
meets every two months. 

 
3.7 There is a stakeholders group that is theme group of Bromsgrove 

Partnership that includes representatives of the public, private and voluntary 
sector that are interested in or involved in the regeneration of the town 
centre. This meets twice a year. 

 
3.8 There are already tangible signs of the regeneration of the town centre. The 

public toilet facility has been upgraded and the bus station has been 
significantly improved. However, there are a significant number of other 
aspects of the regeneration of the town centre at various stages of 
development.  

 
3.9 The main foci of the town centre’s regeneration are the:- 
 

• next stage of the Area Action Plan – the preferred option; 
• redevelopment of the market hall site; 
• negotiation with Sainsbury’s regarding the development of their 

proposed supermarket and the planning obligation opportunities that 
this creates; 

• development of a new medical Centre on part of the former Parkside 
School site; 

• construction of a new joint police and fire station; 
• construction of a new railway station; 
• improvements to the public realm especially the surface of the High 

Street; 
• Improvements to the ASDA supermarket; 
• actions to improve shop fronts in the Worcester Road area of the town 

centre; 
• application of funding from the Heritage Lottery Fund to improve the 

appearance of the conservation area of the town centre; AND 
•  establishment of a feasibility group to consider the regeneration 

options and funding considerations regarding a leisure centre, civic 
facilities, redevelopment of Windsor Street and Recreation Road. 

 
3.10  Attached appendix provides further details on these issues. 
 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The town centre regeneration is included in the budget and the medium 

term financial plan.  

Page 48



 

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 This is not relevant for this report.  
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1 The town centre regeneration is one of the Council’s objectives. It is a 

complicated and prolonged project the pursuit of which demands the sub-
division into a series of projects.  . 

 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The town centre regeneration form part of the corporate risk register 
  

8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1  There are exceedingly high expectations from the wider community with 

regard to the regeneration of the town centre. It featured as the principal 
priority for residents in the recent place survey. The process of regenerating 
the town centre is a lengthy process and it is critical that people are kept 
informed of progress and what are reasonable ambitions.  

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Consideration of the needs of the widest sections of the community is taken 

into account when plans for the regeneration of the town centre are being 
prepared. Therefore, issues of access and the type of facilities developed 
are all framed in the context of equalities and diversity.  

 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The regeneration of the town centre looks to provide the best possible level 

of provision and service for the best return to the Council.  
 
11. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Please include the following table and spell out any particular implications in 

the relevant box. If there are no implications under a particular heading, 
please state ’None’:- 

 
Procurement Issues - None 
 
Personnel Implications - None 
 
 
Governance/Performance Management - None 
 
 

Page 49



 

Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 - None 
 
 
Policy – The town centre regeneration is central to the policy 
considerations. 
 
Environmental  - Environmental considerations inform decisions 
about the regeneration of the town centre 
 

 
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 
 Please include the following table and indicate ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ as appropriate. 

Delete the words in italics. 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 

Chief Executive 
 

No 

Executive Director (Partnerships and Projects)  
 

Yes 

Executive Director (Services) 
 

No 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

No 

Head of Financial Services 
 

No 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 The ward primarily affected is St John’s, but owing to the town centre’s 

relationship with other parts of the district all wards are affected. 
 
14. APPENDICES 
 
 Please list the appendices attached to the report as shown in the example 

below. 
 
 Appendix 1 Town Centre Project Board Report 

Page 50



 

 Appendix  2      Town Centre Programme update 
 
15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Not applicable 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Phil Street  
E Mail:  p.street@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881202 
 
 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                
BROMSGROVE TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION PROGRAMME 

 

 
Richard Savory 

U: U166 Major Projects/PO37 Bromsgrove Regeneration Programme/Programme Governance/ Project Highlight Report 
11/01/2010 

Appendix One 
 
 

HIGHLIGHT REPORT 
 
VISION: An attractive & vibrant town centre at the heart of a thriving market town. 
 
MISSION: The regeneration and revitalisation of the town centre of Bromsgrove. 
 
Project: 
     Programme Level Update 

 
Prepared by: 
      Richard Savory 

 
Date: 
 18 November 2009 Period covered: 

 November 2009 

Project Start: 
 PID Approval September 2008 Projected completion: 

 TBA 

Red Project outside scope, timescales and/or budget 
Amber Some risks exist, but mitigation being undertaken 

Project Status 
(mark as appropriate) 

Green Project within scope, timescales and/or budget 
 
MILESTONES: This period 
 
Due Date Milestone Update 
Carried 
from 
August 

Confirmation of funding for 
Railway Station 
 

Complete – meeting held.  £11million funding in 
place - £5million London Midland / £6million 
WCC/DoT/AWM.  £2million required from 
Network Rail to be confirmed. 

Carried 
from 
September 

Confirm new Police and Fire 
Station 
 

Complete – Agreement reached between New 
College and Police.  Further details following 
Steering Group presentations by Blue Light 
Agencies 

Carried 
from 
September 

Forward timetable agreed for 
resurfacing of pavements on key 
approaches to town centre 
gateways 

Meeting with Jon Fraser – County Highways – 
re-arranged for January 

October SMT Support for BDC Strategic 
Planning Bromsgrove Listed 
Building scheme 

Strategic Planning advise that judged low 
priority – may compromise ability to match 
English Heritage / Lottery funding for Town 
Centre 

November Procurement process for Market 
Hall demolition commenced 

On target - Completion Anticipated 

November New Town Centre Pedestrian 
Signage installed 

On target – Completion Anticipated 

Page 53



                                                                                
BROMSGROVE TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION PROGRAMME 

 

 
Richard Savory 

U: U166 Major Projects/PO37 Bromsgrove Regeneration Programme/Programme Governance/ Project Highlight Report 
11/01/2010 

November £10,000 Christmas support 
package in place and light switch 
on event held 

On target – Completion Anticipated 

November PID for AAP issued Delayed – carry over to December 
November Mandate for next phase of 

Property Review agreed by 
Steering Group 

On target – Completion Anticipated 

November Detailed negotiations opened with 
Sainsbury 

Due to commence 1December 

November Final independent report on 
Parkside Junction options 
 

Complete 

 
MILESTONES: Next period 
 
Due Date Milestone Update 
Carried 
from 
September 

Forward timetable agreed for 
resurfacing of pavements on key 
approaches to town centre 
gateways 

Meeting with Jon Fraser – County Highways – 
re-arranged for January 

November PID for AAP issued Delayed – carry over to December 
November Detailed 106 negotiations opened 

with Sainsbury 
Due to commence 1December 

December THI Bid submitted to Lottery  
December PSICA Bid submitted to English 

Heritage 
 

December Phase 2 Public Assets Review 
started 

 

December Town Centre Housing Survey 
started 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Please highlight the key points of progress and activity that have occurred in the period to further 
the strategic aims of the Bromsgrove Town Centre Regeneration Programme. 
 
1. A revitalised and attractive town centre 
 
 
Outline bid accepted by Lottery for Townscape Heritage Initiative – Invitation for full application 
due to be submitted in November. 
Outline bid accepted by English Heritage for Worcester Road area.  Invitation for full application 
due to be submitted in November. 
Public Realm Design work completed for North End High Street in preparation for 106 
negotiations with Sainsbury. 
 
 
 

Page 54



                                                                                
BROMSGROVE TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION PROGRAMME 

 

 
Richard Savory 

U: U166 Major Projects/PO37 Bromsgrove Regeneration Programme/Programme Governance/ Project Highlight Report 
11/01/2010 

 
 
2. A thriving and diverse economy 
 
 
Market Hall demolition procurement process ready to start. 
£10000 funding for shop fronts agreed with Worcestershire County Council (will be levered by 
using towards PSICA Heritage Match)  
Major Christmas Lights Switch on event. 
 
 
3. New multi-agency public service facilities 
 
 
We are on target to start on site with the Health Centre and the Fire and Police Station before the 
end of the Financial Year. 
The review of facilities in Recreation Road has been started. 
 
 
4. An improved Transport Infrastructure 
 
 
A speculative bid to fund the bus station has been made through WCC into AWM's Sustainable 
Urban Development Initiative. 
Sainsbury Negotiations on Transport have been positioned to scale back the loss of trees at 
Parkside and to help fund new town centre bus services. 
New finger posts for pedestrians will be installed before Christmas. 
 
 
5. Area Action Plan 
 
 
Early work has started to produce the preferred option.  This includes production of the PID – due 
November, progressing PPS6 and a summary of the statutory consultation at Issues and Options 
phase. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL UPDATE 
 
Half Year position on Budgets awaited. 
£10000 WCC Christmas Money allocated 
£10000 WCC Shop Front Money secured 
Bids to English Heritage / Lottery / Sainsbury in progress 
 
 
ISSUES LOG / RISK REGISTER 
 

Page 55



                                                                                
BROMSGROVE TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION PROGRAMME 

 

 
Richard Savory 

U: U166 Major Projects/PO37 Bromsgrove Regeneration Programme/Programme Governance/ Project Highlight Report 
11/01/2010 

Mark with an X as appropriate (see definitions below): - 
Issue Risk Description Countermeasure 

  As per main Risk Register 
 

 

   
 

 

   
 

 

 
 
OUTLOOK / SUMMARY 
 
 
The main focus at this stage continues to be maximising the contribution to the regeneration of 
Bromsgrove from Sainsbury and the success in persuading the Lottery to receive an application 
to the Townscape Heritage Initiative from us.  These activities will take priority over any other 
actions/milestones at this key stage of their application to develop a store in town. 
 
 
 
HIGHLIGHT REPORT ENDS 
 
 
Definitions: - 
Risk: Something that could affect the successful completion of the project, the achievement of its 
strategic aims and objectives, or its cost, timescales or scope. 
Issue: Various problems, queries and changes that occur in the process of a Project.  These may 
or may not become a defined Risk. 

Page 56



Appendix Two 
 
Notes of the Town Centre Re-generation Programme Board Meeting held 
on Wednesday 28th October 2009 
 
In attendance 
 
Phil Street 
Richard Savoury 
Brian Nicholls 
 
 
MS Project Training 
 
RS and Ross Walker have now completed formal MS Project training and will 
be converting all manual/excel based project plans onto this media moving 
forward. This will allow visibility of task/project dependencies etc. 
 
Railway Station 
 
Last meeting scheduled for October ’09 was postponed with extremely late 
notice. 
Re-scheduled meeting now for the 11/11/09. 
A Project Plan with start/end dates will be available from the Passenger 
Transport Team at this meeting. 
Outline works start date forecast for the end of 2010. 
Whilst the funding gap for the original Railway Station specification remains, it 
also remains possible to commence build based on “modular” Train Station 
option within existing funding levels. Clearly this will not include all of the 
previously considered “options” for the Station. RS has the specific details. 
 
Police & Fire Station 
 
The Board of Governors met on the 13/09/09 to discuss sale of site. 
The majority of the Governors were in favour of the sale based on the 
valuation available at the time. 
Delays built into decision making process however after the Governors 
requested a further independent valuation of the site. 
Confirmation on the sales of the property anticipated this month. 
 
Dependencies – Additional independent Property valuation 
 
Civic Centre 
 
WCC have not approved the PID submitted by RS stating that it was too 
prescriptive in nature. 
RS has now produced a brief mandate document relating to the management 
of all assets which is to be forwarded to the Steering Group for approval. 
The mandate if accepted will force the County to review all assets currently  
 

Page 57



 
within scope rather than just the “favoured” items. 
 
Dependencies - Due to the wide ranging, all inclusive nature of the mandate 
i.e. inclusion of Spadesbourne, Worcestershire Hub, Dolphin Centre etc. 
within scope, there are a large number of inter-related dependencies attached 
to this project. 
 
Resurfacing of pavements 
 
This is a discreet, stand alone project with PS meeting with John Fraser w/e 
30th October to obtain agreement on available spend for re-surfacing works to 
pavements. 
 
Dependencies - None 
 
Market Hall Demolition 
 
Terms of reference for demolition of site now complete and agreed. 
Demolition of site due to commence in March ’09. 
The site will become additional car parking only until such point as an 
alternative use is found for the site. 
 
Dependencies – None currently 
 
New Town Centre Pedestrian Signage 
 
Signage now received and currently at Depot. 
Signage will be installed in Town Centre during November ‘09 
 
Dependencies – None 
 
Recreation Road Property Review 
 
Completed – No further actions at his point. 
 
Confirmation of £10,000 “windfall” Christmas funding from WCC. 
 
Funding terms now agreed. 
Funding will contribute to:- 
 

§ General Christmas festivities/activities. 
§ Additional Christmas lighting 
§ Seasonal Planting 

 
Dependencies – None 
 
 
 
 

Page 58



High Dependency Unit – Notes on Budget overspend 
 
Budget overspend of approximately £20k based on revised £175K forecast 
spend. 
NB. It should be noted that the original build specification came in at circa 
£300k. This was subsequently heavily re-worked by RS to the £175K spec. 
The over spend related to a number of specific items:- 

§ Additional Community Safety features incorporated in final build. 
§ Additional Anti-Vandal measures  
§ Additional disabled facility features 

 
These additional features were incorporated based on the view that an 
attendant would not be employed. 
Subsequently, an attendant has been employed which may have obviated 
these additional costs. 
However, they are seen as being a potential maintenance cost saving in the 
longer term. 
 
Dependencies – None 
 
Sainsbury’s – Road Junction Development 
 
Sainsbury’s were considering 3 options for the potential road junction 
Only 1 option met the necessary criteria for both Sainsbury’s and BDC. 
This option is now being considered and developed further. 
The option would have the minimum impact upon the landscape, existing 
trees etc. 
It would incorporate changed traffic priorities and additional traffic lights plus a 
new road across the existing car park. 
Detailed plans are now available for review. 
Construction only costs are estimated by Sainsbury’s to be in the region of 
£330k. 
 
 
         BJN2810/09 
 
 
 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

18TH JANUARY 2010 
 

 
SHARED SERVICES 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Roger Hollingworth, Leader of the 

Council 
Responsible Head of Service Kevin Dicks, Chief Executive 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To update the Board on the Shared Services project. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Board: 
 

i. Considers the project highlight report attached and makes any 
recommendations to Cabinet it thinks appropriate. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1  The UK’s financial position has changed dramatically in the last twelve 

months.  Every public sector organisation is going to need to make 
significant savings over the next Parliament, in order to cope with the 
expected reductions in Central Government Grant whilst at the same time 
retain and improve services. 

 
3.2 The District Council is comparatively well placed to respond to this agenda, 

through its shared services project with Redditch Borough Council and the 
Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT) project. 

 
Shared Services 

 
3.3 Shared Services will see Bromsgrove District Council and Redditch Borough 

Council share services, both front office and back office, whilst remaining 
separate organisations.  The project has proceeded as planned with a 
single Chief Executive and a number of “quick wins” like Elections and 
Community Safety.  The project is now preceding to the next stage, in 
particular, the creation of a single management team for both Councils.  A 
project highlight report, supported by a risk register and issues log, is 
produced each month for the Shared Services Board, made of Members 
from both Councils.  The latest highlight report is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 61



 

WETT Programme 
 
3.4 The three business cases recommending the sharing of Property, Audit and 

Regulatory Services across Worcestershire are currently out to formal 
consultation with affected staff and trades unions.  The consultation 
deadline is the 21 December 2009.   

 
3.5 Following the consultation process, the final WETT report will go to January 

Cabinet and Full Council for a decision in respect of Bromsgrove District 
Council.  The other 6 Council’s will each make their decisions between 24th 
November 2009 and 23rd February 2010. 

 
3.6 If approved by the participating Councils, Regulatory Services should be 

operational by 01 June 2010 and hosted by Bromsgrove and Redditch 
Councils.  Property Services by 01 April 2010, hosted by Worcestershire 
County Council and Internal Audit by 01 April 2010, hosted by Worcester 
City Council. 

  
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The single management team will deliver a saving of £246,000 in 

2010/2011.  In addition savings from the joint arrangements with Redditch 
for CCTV, Lifeline and ICT will generate £120k from 2010/11.   

 
4.2 The anticipated savings from the WETT programme are £150,000 in 

2011/12.   
 
4.3 It is anticipated that once the single management team is in place further 

reviews of joint working arrangements will be undertaken to generate 
additional savings and capacity to support the Council over the financial 
plan period.  
 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Every shared service will have legal implications, particularly, if we are not 

the host authority.  Each shared service whether with Redditch or with one 
of the other councils in Worcestershire will be supported by a detailed 
service level agreement (a form of contract). 

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  Shared Services and WETT contribute to the Council Objective: 

Improvement and the priority: Value for Money. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
  

Page 62



 

• Non delivery of savings. 
• Non delivery of service improvements.   
  

7.2    These risks are being managed as follows:  
  

Risk Register: Shared Services.  
Key Objective Ref No: Separate Risk Register 
Key Objective:  Separate Risk Register 

  
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 It is important to remember that while there is bound to be an emphasis on 

making savings our expectation is that each shared service will also seek to 
improve services to the customer.  This will be achieved using techniques 
like lean systems, customer first training, customer services accreditation 
and the use of technology. 

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None. 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The whole report is concerned with value for money. 
 
11. CLIMATE CHANGE AND CARBON IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The report is not directly concerned with climate change, but each new 

shared service will be expected to consider how to contribute to reducing 
CO2 emissions.  The expectation is that each merged service will have one 
service business plan that includes a section on climate change. 

 
12. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Please include the following table and spell out any particular implications in 

the relevant box. If there are no implications under a particular heading, 
please state ’None’:- 

 
Procurement Issues: See point about SLAs for each service. 
 
Personnel: The single management team and shared services in 
general will have significant HR issues and we will need to ensure 
sufficient capacity for respond to this. 
 
Governance/Performance Management: See previous point about 
SLAs. 
 
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998: The Community Safety service is one of the shared services. 

Page 63



 

Policy: None. 
 
Biodiversity: None.  
 

 
13. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No. 

Chief Executive 
 

No. 

Executive Director - Partnerships and Projects  
 

No. 

Executive Director - Services 
 

No. 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

No. 

Head of Service 
 

No. 

Head of Financial Services 
  

No. 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No. 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No. 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No. 

 
14. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All.   
 
15. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 – Shared Services Highlight report  
 
16. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Not applicable. 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Kevin Dicks  
E Mail:  k.dickst@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881484 

Page 64



 
Appendix 1 

 
Highlight Report         
 

Project:  Shared Services Project 

Calendar Week 
ending:  

20/11/09 Report prepared by: K Dicks 

Status: 
Red/Amber/Green  

Green % Complete:  5% 

Project Start 01/08/09 Projected 
Completion 

01/01/13 

Summary position: 

The main elements to this project and updates are as follows: 

• Elections – business case completed and agreed by both councils – BDC host. IT 
migration progressing. Draft SLA produced. Staff positions recruited to. 
Implementation progressing in accordance with the project timescales. 

• Community Safety – business case completed and agreed by both councils – RBC 
host. SLA being prepared. Implementation progressing in accordance with the 
project timescales. 

• IT – draft business case produced – BDC agreed as host. Work completed on cost 
sharing approach – agreed by SSB. 

• CCTV / Lifeline – draft business case produced – RBC agreed as host. Work 
completed on cost sharing approach – agreed by SSB. 

• Economic Development (being led by Wyre Forest). External support 
commissioned to produce North Worcestershire Economic Strategy which will 
include assessment of options for Shared Service. Draft to be completed by end of 
November – final to be completed by January.  

• Single Management Team – final structure (including changes as a result of 
consultation changes) approved by both full Councils. Formal at risk letters issued. 
Work continuing on developing assessment centre and interview process. Drop in 
sessions to be held. Mock assessment centres to be held 26th and 27th November. 
Closing date for applications for Executive Directors / Directors is 1st December 
and for Heads of Service posts 31st December. 

• Transformation – Initial discussions have been held with the WMIEP over support 
they could provide to the Transformation Agenda – including a site visit to Warwick 
District Council. A visit is also planned to Staffordshire Moorlands and High Peak 
Borough who have used transformational change and lean systems thinking 
across the two authorities. 

Page 65



 

A Shared Services Programme Board (comprising officers at both Councils) has been 
established to oversee implementation of the approved business cases, development of 
medium term win business cases, development of the full business case and also ensure 
that appropriate linkages are made. The role of this Board will also include overseeing 
any concerns over performance – e,g., payroll. It will also make sure that the proper 
linkages are made with the WETT programme for which another overarching board has 
been established which KD chairs. 

 

Key Tasks for next month Measure of Success 
• Finalise recruitment process • Process completed 

• Recruit Executive Directors and 
Directors 

• Recruit to positions 

• Progression of implementation for 
2 approved business cases in 
accordance with timescales 

• Projects progressing 

• Risk register and mitigating actions 
to be reviewed 

• Risk Register reviewed 

Risks, issues and concerns Mitigating Action 

• Lack of capacity at BDC to ensure 
continued improvement 

Support from WMRIEP and external support 
adds capacity 

Main risks are outlined in feasibility study and 
risk register (including mitigating actions) will be 
continually reviewed over the coming months. 
One risk, that of political buy in has increased. 
See report. 

Financial Update 

Within budget. 

 
 

Page 66



11/01/2010 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

18TH JANUARY 2010 
 
 

 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT [November 2009] 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  
 

Cllr. Roger Hollingworth, Leader of 
the Council  

Responsible Officer Hugh Bennett  
Assistant Chief Executive 

 
1.  SUMMARY 

 
1.1 To ask PMB to consider the Improvement Plan Exception Report for 

November 2009 (Appendix 1).   
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That PMB considers and approves the revisions to the Improvement 

Plan Exception Report attached as Appendix 1, and the corrective 
action being taken.  

 
2.2 That PMB notes that for the 95 actions highlighted for November within 

the plan 74.7% of the Improvement Plan is on target [green], 5.3% is 
one month behind [amber] and 2.1% is over one month behind [red].  
17.9% of actions have been reprogrammed or suspended with 
approval1; these include the reprogramming of some town centre 
actions and the suspension of the Code of Conduct for Members (due 
to Government delays in introduction), the working practices review 
and ‘The Bromsgrove Way’ (due to shared services). 

 
2.3 This month’s performance is shown on the first page of Appendix 1.   
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 July 2008 Cabinet approved the Improvement Plan 2008/09.  The 

Improvement Plan is directly linked to the four corporate priorities and 
thirteen enablers identified in the Council Plan 2009/2012. 

 
3.2 The Improvement Plan is designed to help monitor the detailed actions 

flowing from the Council Plan, which will help move the Council forward 
to excellent in the medium term. 

 
3.3 There were 5 amber and 2 red activities this month for the following 

areas of the Improvement Plan:- 

                                            
1 NB reprogrammed actions are those that have been moved to a later point in the year. 
Suspended actions are those which have been suspended completely for the period covered 
by the Plan.   

Agenda Item 9

Page 67



11/01/2010 

 
 
 
 
 

Ref. Council Plan Balanced Scorecard 
Reference 

Number 

CP1 Town Centre 2 
FP2 Governing the Business 1 
PR4  Improved Partnership Working 1 
PR5 Planning 3 

 
3.4 The re-programmed and suspended actions Plan are:- 
 

Ref. Action  
 

Reason 

1.1.2 Unified vision Reprogrammed- work will 
recommence on Area Action 
Plan in 2010. 

1.6.2 Multi-modal study Reprogrammed- discussions with 
County delayed by preferred 
option consultation 

5.4.5, 5.4.6, 5.4.7 Budget Jury Suspended  
7.3.3 Climate Change Matrix Suspended due to changed 

approach 
8.1.2 Report predicted outturn  Suspended   
9.2.4 Customer Standards Reprogrammed- Will now be 

launched in January 2010 
10.2.2 Code of Conduct for 

Members 
Suspended due to Government 
delays 

14.1.3, 14.1.4 The Bromsgrove Way 
consultation 

Suspended- proposals to be 
changed 

14.2.7 Investors in People  Suspended due to revised 
approach 

16.1.1, 16.1.2, 
16.1.3, 16.1.5 

Working practices review Suspended due to prioritisation 
of harmonisation 

16.2.4 Employee satisfaction 
implementation 

Suspended 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 No financial implications.  
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No legal implications.  
 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  The Improvement Plan relates to all of the Council’s four objectives and 

four priorities as per the 2009/2012 Council Plan. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Corporate Risk Title Improvement Plan Reference 
KO1: Effective Financial Management FP1 – Managing Finances 

Page 68



11/01/2010 

and Internal Control  
KO2: Effective corporate leadership FP1 – Managing Finances 

FP2 – Governing the Business 
FP3 – Managing Resources 
FP4 – Managing Performance 
PR2 –Political Governance 

KO3: Effective  Member / Officer 
relations 

PR2 –Political Governance  
HROD1 – Learning & Development 

KO4: Effective Member / Member 
relations 

PR2 –Political Governance  
HROD1 – Learning & Development 

KO5*: Full compliance with the Civil 
Contingencies Act and effective 
Business Continuity 

PR1 – Customer Processes 

KO6: Maximising the benefits of 
investment in ICT equipment and 
training 

PR1 – Customer Processes 

KO7: Effective partnership working PR4 – Improved Partnership Working 
KO8: Effective communications 
(internal and external) 

PR1 – Customer Processes 
 

KO9: Equalities and diversity agenda 
embedded across the Authority 

CP3 – Sense of Community 
FP4 – Managing Performance 

KO10: Appropriate investment in 
employee development and training 

HROD1 – Learning & Development 
HROD2 – Modernisation 
HROD3- Positive Employee Climate 

KO11: Effective employee recruitment 
and retention 

HROD1 – Learning & Development 
HROD2 – Modernisation 
HROD3- Positive Employee Climate  

KO12: Full compliance with all Health 
and Safety legislation 

HROD3- Positive Employee Climate 

KO13: Effective two tier working and 
Community Engagement 

CP3 – Sense of Community 
PR4 – Improved Partnership Working 

KO14: Successful implementation of 
Job Evaluation 

HROD2 - Modernisation 

KO15: All Council data is accurate and 
of high quality 

FP1 – Managing Finances 
FP4 – Managing Performance 

KO16: The Council no longer in 
recovery 

FP1 – Managing Finances 
FP2 – Governing the Business 
FP3 – Managing Resources 
FP4 – Managing Performance 
PR2 –Political Governance 

KO17: Effective Projects Management FP1 – Managing Finances 
KO19: Effective Business and 
Performance Management 

FP4 – Managing Performance 
 

KO20: Effective Customer Focused 
Authority 

CP3 – Sense of Community 
PR1 – Customer Processes 

* KO5 and KO18 have been merged 
 
8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 The Improvement Plan includes a range of actions to deliver the 

Council’s Customer First value. Please see section PR1 of the 
Improvement Plan. 

Page 69



11/01/2010 

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Please see sections CP3 and FP4 of the Improvement Plan 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 See sections FP1-FP3 of the Improvement Plan 
 
11.   OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
Procurement Issues: See Section FP2 of the Improvement Plan. 
Personnel Implications: See Sections HROD1-HROD3 of the 
Improvement Plan.  
Governance/Performance Management:  See Sections FP4 and PR2 
of the Improvement Plan. 
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998:  See section CP3 of the Improvement Plan 
Policy:  All sections of the Improvement Plan relate to this. 
Environmental:  See sections CP4 and FP3 of the Improvement Plan. 

 
 
 12.    OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  

Portfolio Holder 
 

No 
 

Chief Executive 
 

At CMT 

Executive Director (Partnerships and 
Projects) 

At CMT 

Executive Director (Services)  
 

At CMT 

Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
 

Head of Service At CMT  

Head of Financial Services At CMT 

Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

At CMT 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

At CMT 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
13.  WARDS AFFECTED 
 
13.1 All wards. 
 
14.   APPENDICES 

 
14.1  Appendix 1 Improvement Plan Exception Report November 2009. 
 

Page 70



11/01/2010 

 
15.     BACKGROUND PAPERS: 
 
15.1 The full Improvement Plan for November can be found at 

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk under meetings Minutes and Agendas. A 
hard copy is also left in the Members’ Room each month. 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
Name:   Rebecca Dunne  
E Mail:  r.dunne@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881616 
 

Page 71



Exception Report for November 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 11/01/2010 11:15 
 

6 

 
PROGRESS IN 2009/10 
 
Overall performance as at the end of November 2009, in comparison with the previous year, is as follows: -  

 

 

 

July 2008 August 2008 September 2008 October 2008 November 2008 December 2008 
RED 11 8.6% RED 17 14.4% RED 16 11.9% RED 15 10.6% RED 12 8.7% RED 13 9.9% 
AMBER 3 2.3% AMBER 4 3.4% AMBER 8 6.0% AMBER 7 5.0% AMBER 8 5.8% AMBER 5 3.9% 
GREEN 114 89.1% GREEN 96 81.4% GREEN 99 73.9% GREEN 104 73.8% GREEN 106 76.8% GREEN 100 76.3% 
REPRO 0 0% REPRO 1 0.8% REPRO* 11 8.2% REPRO 15 10.6% REPRO 12 8.7% REPRO 13 9.9% 

January 2009 February 2009 March 2009 April 2009 May 2009 June 2009 
RED 0 0% RED 2 1.5% RED 3 2.9% RED 3 3.2% RED 3 3.85% RED 1 1.2% 
AMBER 4 3.6% AMBER 3 2.3% AMBER 5 4.9% AMBER 5 5.4% AMBER 3 3.85% AMBER 0 0% 
GREEN 95 86.4% GREEN 112 86.2% GREEN 80 78.5% GREEN 71 76.3% GREEN 60 76.9% GREEN 70 82.3% 
REPRO 11 10.0% REPRO 13 10.0% REPRO 14 13.7% REPRO 14 15.1% REPRO 12 15.4% REPRO 14 16.5% 

July 2009 August 2009 September 2009 October 2009 November 2009 December 2009 
RED 0 0% RED 0 0% RED 4 3.8% RED 2 2.1% RED 2 2.1% RED   
AMBER 11 13.3% AMBER 6 8.5% AMBER 9 8.7% AMBER 9 9.6% AMBER 5 5.3% AMBER   
GREEN 67 80.7% GREEN 60 84.5% GREEN 79 76% GREEN 70 74.5% GREEN 71 74.7% GREEN   
REPRO 0 0% REPRO 0 0% REPRO 0 0% REPRO 0 0% REPRO 3 3.2% REPRO   
SUSP 5 6% SUSP 5 7% SUSP 12 11.5% SUSP 13 13.8% SUSP 14 14.7% SUSP   

January 2010 February 2010 March 2010 April 2010 May 2010 June 2010 
RED   RED   RED   RED   RED   RED   
AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   AMBER   
GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   GREEN   
REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   REPRO   
SUSP   SUSP   SUSP   SUSP   SUSP   SUSP   

P
age 72



Exception Report for November 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 11/01/2010 11:15 
 

7 

Where: - 
 
 On Target 

or 
completed 

 One month 
behind 
target or 
less 

 Over one 
month 
behind 
target 

 Original 
date of 
planned 
action 

 Re-
programmed 
date.* 

 Suspended** 

* NB. Reprogrammed actions are those that have been moved to a later point in the year.  They are not actions that have been extended and 
they do not appear on the exception report once they have received approval. 
**NB. Suspended actions are those that have been suspended completely for the period covered by the Improvement Plan 
 
An Exception Report detailing corrective actions follows: 
 
 

P
age 73



Exception Report for November 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 11/01/2010 11:15 
 

8 

 

1.1.1 Engage specialist 
organisation to complete 
unified vision 

PS             The listing of Parkside has delayed the 
resumption of the work on the AAP and 
the preferred option. However, it would 
appear that the police and fire service 
have now secured an alternative site and 
are awaiting the outcome of a HMIC 
report and a final decision from the 
Police Committee before commencing 
work on the building although there is 
sufficient money to secure the site. It is 
anticipated that work will recommence on 
the AAP in January 2010. The unified 
vision will be completed by April with the 
AAP itself being completed by June 
2010. However, it is not likely to receive 
official approval until April 2011. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  November 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.1.1 Engage specialist organisation to 
complete unified vision 

 Work will recommence on the AAP in January 2010. The 
unified vision will be completed by April with the AAP itself 
being completed by June 2010. However, it is not likely to 
receive official approval until April 2011. 

PS Nov 09 Apr 10 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly
 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep
. 

O
ct
. 

N
o
v.
 

D
ec
. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb
. 

M
ar
. 

A
p
r.
 

M
ay
 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

1.1 Agreement on preferred option of Area Action Plan 
 

P
age 74



Exception Report for November 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 11/01/2010 11:15 
 

9 

1.5.2 Public consultation  
complete 

HB             Meeting with Network Rail in early 
November cancelled by Network Rail. 
The County Council has requested that 
Network Rail produce a design this side 
of Christmas that more closely matches 
the available funding. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CP1: Town Centre 
Ref  November 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

1.5.2 Public consultation  complete  Meeting with Network Rail in early November cancelled by 
Network Rail. The County Council has requested that 
Network Rail produce a design this side of Christmas that 
more closely matches the available funding. 

HB Nov 09 TBC 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly
 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep
. 

O
ct
. 

N
o
v.
 

D
ec
. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb
. 

M
ar
. 

A
p
r.
 

M
ay
 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

1.5 Train Station 
 

P
age 75



Exception Report for November 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 11/01/2010 11:15 
 

10 

6.3.5 Present risk management 
training to Members 

JLP             Risk Management to be included in the 
quarter 4 training plans for members 

 
 
 
 

12.3.1 Benchmark grants policies 
of other councils. 

HB             EXTENDED: Not started yet, due to 
focus on LSP Board. 

 
 

FP2: Governing the Business (including Value for Money) 
Ref  November 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

6.3.5 Present risk management training to 
Members 

 Risk Management to be included in the quarter 4 training 
plans for members 

JLP Nov 09 Jan 10 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly
 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep
. 

O
ct
. 

N
o
v.
 

D
ec
. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb
. 

M
ar
. 

A
p
r.
 

M
ay
 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

6.3 Effective risk management 
 

PR4: Improved Partnership Working 
Ref  November 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

12.3.1 Benchmark grants policies of other 
councils. 

 Not started yet, due to focus on LSP Board. HB Nov 09 Apr 10 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly
 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep
. 

O
ct
. 

N
o
v.
 

D
ec
. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb
. 

M
ar
. 

A
p
r.
 

M
ay
 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

12.3 Grants policy 
 

P
age 76



Exception Report for November 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 11/01/2010 11:15 
 

11 

13.3.2 Prepare Further Draft Core 
Strategy 

MD             EXTENDED: Discussions held with 
GOWM to address the outcomes of the 
RSS panel report. The next draft is 
dependent on guidance from GOWM- 
next draft expected to be published 
summer 2010, depending on outcome of 
RSS proposed changes due to be 
announced on 16th December. 

 
 
 
 

PR5: Planning 
Ref  November 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

13.3.2 Prepare Further Draft Core Strategy  EXTENDED: Next draft expected to be published summer 
2010, depending on outcome of RSS proposed changes 
due to be announced on 16th December. 

MD Nov 09 TBC 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly
 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep
. 

O
ct
. 

N
o
v.
 

D
ec
. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb
. 

M
ar
. 

A
p
r.
 

M
ay
 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

13.3 Local Development Framework 
 

P
age 77



Exception Report for November 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 11/01/2010 11:15 
 

12 

13.4.3 Quarterly Member Planning 
training 

DH             Training was planned for September, 
which would be second session of the 
year. Lack of availability of a suitable 
room has delayed this slightly. Session 
now planned for December 3rd. In 
addition lessons learned from recent 
ombudsman cases will be discussed 
following planning committee in 
December. Further training planned on 
specific housing issues of need and 
affordability prior to consideration of 
Stoke Prior planning application. 

 
 

PR5: Planning 
Ref  November 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

13.4.3 Quarterly Member Planning training  Training was planned for September, which would be 
second session of the year. Lack of availability of a 
suitable room has delayed this slightly. Session now 
planned for December 3rd.  

DH Nov 09 Dec 09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly
 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep
. 

O
ct
. 

N
o
v.
 

D
ec
. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb
. 

M
ar
. 

A
p
r.
 

M
ay
 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

13.4 Effective Development Control Service 
 

P
age 78



Exception Report for November 2009 Improvement Plan                                     Appendix 1 

Last Updated on 11/01/2010 11:15 
 

13 

13.4.6 Consider results at 
Customer First Board and 
CMT, including action plan. 

DH             Preparations for peer review self 
assessment started along with document 
preparation. 
Initial draft report has arrived, with a 
meeting to be scheduled between 
strategic housing, strategic planning, 
Director of Partnerships and Projects and 
the Head of Planning & Environment in 
January 2010. 

 

PR5: Planning 
Ref  November 2009 Action Colour  Corrective Action  Who  Original 

Date 
 

Revised 
Date 

13.4.6 Consider results at Customer First 
Board and CMT, including action 
plan. 

 Preparations for peer review self assessment started 
along with document preparation. Initial draft report has 
arrived, with a meeting to be scheduled between strategic 
housing, strategic planning, Director of Partnerships and 
Projects and the Head of Planning & Environment in 
January 2010. 

DH Nov 09 Dec 09 

Ref. Action Lead 

Ju
ly
 

A
u
g
. 

S
ep
. 

O
ct
. 

N
o
v.
 

D
ec
. 

Ja
n
. 

F
eb
. 

M
ar
. 

A
p
r.
 

M
ay
 

Ju
n
e Corrective Action 

13.4 Effective Development Control Service 
 

P
age 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

18TH JANUARY 2010 
 

NOVEMBER (PERIOD 8) PERFORMANCE REPORTING 
 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth 
Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Assistant Chief 

Executive 
Non Key Decision 
 
1.  SUMMARY 
  
1.1 To report to The Board on the Council’s performance at 30 November 2009 

(period 8). 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
2.1 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
2.5 
 

That The Board notes that 47% of PIs are stable or improving.   
 
That The Board notes that 76% of PI’s that have a target are meeting their 
target as at the month end and 90% are projected to meet their target at the 
year end.    
 
That The Board notes the performance figures for November 2009 as set out 
in Appendix 2.  
 
That The Board notes the particular areas of improvement as summarised in 
section 3.5. 
 
That The Board notes the PI’s of particular concern as set out in section 3.6. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
  
3.1  The full list of performance indicators due to be reported monthly is set out in 

Appendix 2 where:-  
 
 On Target  I Performance is Improving 
 Less than 10% from target  S Performance is Stable 
 More than 10% from target  W Performance is Worsening 
 No target set  N/a No target set  

 
 

 

3.2 Comparisons of overall performance improvements this month to last month 
are shown on Appendix 1.    
 

3.3 
 

At the beginning of the year the set of corporately reported PI’s was revised 
to ensure they reflect current priorities and also to take account of the revised 

Agenda Item 10

Page 81



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 

assessment methodology that the Council will be judged on under CAA.  
There are a total of 100 PI’s in the corporate set, 37 reported monthly, 26 
quarterly and 40 annually.  Many of the annually reported PI’s are outcome 
measures.  Due to continued problems in obtaining figures for Domestic 
Violence incidents the two indicators covering these have been removed from 
the reporting set with effect from November, hence the number of PI’s 
reported monthly is now 35. 
 
Although the percentage of indicators declining in the month is considerably 
higher than usual ( at 53%) a number of these are due to expected seasonal 
variations and the others are not a significant drop.  As the percentage of PI’s 
meeting both their year to date target and expected to met target at year end 
remains high (at 76% and 90% respectively) the proportion of indicators 
declining this month is not a cause for concern.  
 

3.5  Performance worthy of particular mention is as follows: 
 

Ø Sickness absence remains below the monthly target figure (although 
increased slightly over last month).   

 
Ø Time taken to process Benefit claims has been held around the same 

low levels achieved last month and the number of outstanding items 
has been reduced.  

 
3.6 Performance of potential concern is as follows: 

 
Ø There are no areas of potential concern this month. 

 
  
4. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 There are no financial implications 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
  
5.1 There are no legal implications. 
  
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
  
6.1 Performance reporting & management links to the Improvement objective 
  
7. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

 
•  Data quality problems  
•  Poor performance 

 
7.2 
 
 
 

These risks are being managed as follows:  
 
•  Implementation of the Data Quality Strategy 

Page 82



 
 
7.3 

•   Robust follow up on performance issues, including performance clinics 
 
There are no Health & Safety considerations 

 
8 CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
  
8.1 Performance Improvement is a Council Objective 
  
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
  
9.1 There are no implications for the Council’s Equalities and Diversity Policies. 
  
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 There are no VFM implications   
 
11 
 
11.1 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE AND CARBON IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no climate change implications 
 

12. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 

  
 Procurement Issues None  

 
 Personnel Issues None  

 
 Governance/Performance Management –  Production of the performance 

report supports the aim of improving performance & performance 
management  
 

 Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & Disorder Act 1988 None  
 

 Policy  None  
 

 Biodiversity None  
 

  
12. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
  
  
 Portfolio Holder No 
 Chief Executive Yes (at CMT)  
 Executive Director (Partnerships & Projects) Yes (at CMT)  
 Executive Director (Services) Yes (at CMT)  
 Assistant Chief Executive Yes 
 Head of Service  Yes 
 Head of Financial Services Yes (at CMT)  
 Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic Services Yes (at CMT)  
 Head of Organisational Development & HR Yes (at CMT)  
 Corporate Procurement Team Yes (at CMT)  

Page 83



  
13. WARDS AFFECTED 
  

All Wards. 
  
14. APPENDICES 
  
 Appendix 1  Performance Summary for the period  

Appendix 2    Detail Performance report for the period  
Appendix 3   Detailed figures to support the performance report 
 

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
  
 None 
  
Contact officer 
Name: John Outhwaite, Senior Policy & Performance Officer 
email: j.outhwaite@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881602 

 

Page 84



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

N
o.

%
ag

e3
N

o.
%

ag
e3

N
o.

%
ag

e3

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 o
r 

st
ab

le
.

19
61

%
O

n
 t

ar
g

et
16

59
%

O
n

 t
ar

g
et

24
89

%
D

ec
lin

in
g

12
39

%
M

is
si

n
g

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 1

0%
8

30
%

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 1
0%

2
7%

N
o

 d
at

a 
3

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 1

0%
3

11
%

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 1

0%
1

4%
N

o
 d

at
a2 

7
N

o
 d

at
a2 

7

T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
h

is
 p

er
io

d
1

34
T

o
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

h
is

 p
er

io
d

1
34

T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 r
ep

o
rt

ed
 

th
is

 p
er

io
d

1
34

N
o.

%
ag

e3
N

o.
%

ag
e3

N
o.

%
ag

e3

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 o
r 

st
ab

le
.

28
62

%
O

n
 t

ar
g

et
23

58
%

O
n

 t
ar

g
et

32
80

%
D

ec
lin

in
g

17
38

%
M

is
si

n
g

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 1

0%
11

28
%

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 1
0%

4
10

%
N

o
 d

at
a 

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 1

0%
6

15
%

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 1

0%
4

10
%

N
o

 d
at

a2 
N

o
 d

at
a2 

T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
h

is
 p

er
io

d
1

45
T

o
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

h
is

 p
er

io
d

1
40

T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 r
ep

o
rt

ed
 

th
is

 p
er

io
d

1
40

N
o.

%
ag

e3
N

o.
%

ag
e3

N
o.

%
ag

e3

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 o
r 

st
ab

le
.

21
68

%
O

n
 t

ar
g

et
22

73
%

O
n

 t
ar

g
et

25
89

%
D

ec
lin

in
g

10
32

%
M

is
si

n
g

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 1

0%
7

23
%

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 1
0%

2
7%

N
o

 d
at

a 
6

M
is

si
n

g
 t

ar
g

et
 b

y 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 1

0%
1

3%
M

is
si

n
g

 t
ar

g
et

 b
y 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 1
0%

1
4%

N
o

 d
at

a2 
7

N
o

 d
at

a2 
9

T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
h

is
 p

er
io

d
1

37
T

o
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

rs
 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 t

h
is

 p
er

io
d

1
37

T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 r
ep

o
rt

ed
 

th
is

 p
er

io
d

1
37

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 5
 (

A
u

g
u

st
) 

20
09

/1
0 

M
o

n
th

ly
 (

O
ct

o
b

er
) 

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

E
st

im
at

ed
 O

u
tt

u
rn

M
o

n
th

ly
 (

A
u

g
u

st
) 

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

E
st

im
at

ed
 O

u
tt

u
rn

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 6
/Q

u
ar

te
r 

2 
(S

ep
te

m
b

er
) 

20
09

/1
0 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 -

 P
er

io
d

 7
 (

O
ct

o
b

er
) 

20
09

/1
0 

M
o

n
th

ly
 (

S
ep

te
m

b
er

) 
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
E

st
im

at
ed

 O
u

tt
u

rn

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 P
er

io
d

 0
7 

(O
ct

o
b

er
) 

20
09

/1
0

 

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ep

o
rt

 -
ed

?
�

��
��

��
��

	

�

�
�

�	
��

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

N
o

v 
T

ar
g

et
N

o
v 

A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 &
 

tr
en

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

ut
tu

rn
E

st
. 

O
ut

tu
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

S
tr

ee
t 

S
ce

n
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 

N
I 1

91
R

es
id

ua
l H

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 p

er
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
(K

G
)

M
C

58
6.

26
29

4.
81

28
8.

68
I

34
3.

08
34

0.
15

W
39

3.
21

39
0.

71
W

59
0.

00
59

0.
00

I

T
ra

de
 to

nn
ag

e 
no

t y
et

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
O

ct
 &

 
N

ov
 th

er
ef

or
e 

ac
tu

al
 w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 

on
 th

os
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 s
ho

w
n.

 U
pd

at
ed

 O
N

S
 

da
ta

 fo
r 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
ha

s 
no

w
 

be
en

 r
el

ea
se

d 
an

d 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fr
om

 
38

82
8 

to
 3

89
29

 th
er

ef
or

e 
th

is
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

im
pr

ov
ed

 m
on

th
ly

 s
co

re
s 

sl
ig

ht
ly

.

N
I 1

92
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
e-

us
ed

, r
ec

yc
le

d 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
ed

M
C

43
.2

5
36

.7
6

42
.6

8
W

35
.8

4
41

.8
6

W
34

.9
3

40
.9

3
W

30
.0

0
37

.0
0

S

 G
ar

de
n 

W
as

te
 T

on
na

ge
 is

 fa
lli

ng
 d

ue
 to

 
ch

an
ge

 in
 s

ea
so

ns
 th

er
ef

or
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 

le
ss

 w
as

te
 b

ei
ng

 c
om

po
st

ed
. T

ra
de

 
to

nn
ag

e 
no

t y
et

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
O

ct
 o

r 
N

ov
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ac

tu
al

 w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
n 

th
os

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

ho
w

n.
 

LP
I D

ep
ot

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

w
as

te
 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
M

C
1,

13
6

57
0

56
3

I
66

5
64

2
W

76
0

70
1

I
1,

14
0

95
8

W
59

 M
is

se
d 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
 o

f w
hi

ch
 2

6 
w

er
e 

ga
rd

en
 w

as
te

 =
 0

.1
5%

LP
I D

ep
ot

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
re

cy
cl

e 
w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

M
C

28
1

12
0

76
I

14
0

85
W

16
0

98
W

24
0

12
1

W
13

 m
is

se
d 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
 =

 0
.0

07
%

N
W

B
C

U
5

To
ta

l C
rim

e
M

C
N

ew
2,

80
2

2,
64

5
I

3,
27

6
3,

04
3

I
3,

73
6

3,
45

1
W

5,
58

8
5,

30
3

I

C
rim

e 
ye

ar
 to

 d
at

e 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
do

w
n 

an
d 

w
as

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
in

 lo
ca

l n
ew

sp
ap

er
s 

re
ce

nt
ly

.  
W

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
O

pe
ra

tio
n 

G
ho

st
 to

 s
ee

 it
s 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
di

so
rd

er
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
H

al
lo

w
ee

n 
F

es
tiv

iti
es

 
an

d 
w

e 
ar

e 
la

un
ch

in
g 

a 
C

D
R

P
 W

in
te

r 
S

af
et

y 
P

la
n 

ea
rly

 D
ec

em
be

r 
to

 ta
ck

le
 

re
ta

il 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

pu
rs

e 
th

ef
t i

n 
th

e 
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t, 

N
ig

ht
 T

im
e 

D
is

or
de

r,
 a

nd
 r

ai
se

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 b

ur
gl

ar
y 

pr
ev

en
tio

n.
  T

he
re

 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ub
lic

 r
ea

ss
ur

an
ce

 
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

co
m

in
g 

m
on

th
s.

  F
ul

l d
et

ai
ls

 w
ill

 o
n 

th
e 

P
ub

lic
 W

eb
 S

ite
 b

y 
ea

rly
 to

 m
id

 
D

ec
em

be
r.

  T
he

re
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 b
ur

gl
ar

y 
of

 n
on

-d
w

el
lin

g 
w

hi
ch

 
th

e 
C

D
R

P
 a

re
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

w
hi

ch
 is

 th
ef

ts
 

fr
om

 s
he

ds
, g

ar
ag

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

de
ta

ch
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

ho
m

e.

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

1

Page 87



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ep

o
rt

 -
ed

?
�

��
��

��
��

	

�

�
�

�	
��

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

N
o

v 
T

ar
g

et
N

o
v 

A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 &
 

tr
en

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

ut
tu

rn
E

st
. 

O
ut

tu
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

N
W

B
C

U
1

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 
M

C
43

8
19

5
14

1
I

22
7

15
2

I
26

0
17

1
W

38
9

30
0

I

D
om

es
tic

 B
ur

gl
ar

y 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
of

 lo
w

 
vo

lu
m

e 
w

ith
 o

nl
y 

19
 o

ffe
nc

es
 d

ur
in

g 
N

ov
em

be
r.

  T
hi

s 
is

 d
es

pi
te

 th
e 

se
as

on
al

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

cl
oc

ks
 

ch
an

gi
ng

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 d
ar

ke
r 

ni
gh

ts
.  

P
er

si
st

en
t P

ro
lif

ic
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

w
ith

 b
ur

gl
ar

y 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

ha
bi

ts
 r

em
ai

n 
in

 c
us

to
dy

.  
O

ur
 

ne
xt

 s
pi

ke
 is

 n
or

m
al

ly
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
C

hr
is

tm
as

 p
er

io
d.

  T
he

 C
D

R
P

 W
in

te
r 

S
af

et
y 

pl
an

 ta
ck

le
s 

th
is

 tr
en

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
va

rio
us

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

ra
is

in
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 D

ec
em

be
r 

an
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y.

  
T

he
se

 in
cl

ud
e,

 m
ed

ia
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
, a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t l

oc
al

 
ev

en
ts

 o
ffe

rin
g 

ad
vi

ce
, g

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

fr
ee

 
se

cu
rit

y 
pr

od
uc

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 2

4h
ou

r 
se

gm
en

t t
im

er
s.

N
W

B
C

U
2

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
es

M
C

97
3

49
6

53
7

W
57

3
61

6
I

64
4

68
1

I
92

2
95

9
I

V
io

le
nt

 C
rim

e 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
is

 a
t i

ts
 lo

w
es

t 
vo

lu
m

e 
th

an
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
m

on
th

 
th

is
 y

ea
r.

  W
e 

no
rm

al
ly

 e
xp

ec
t a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 v
io

le
nt

 c
rim

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

in
 th

e 
T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
C

hr
is

tm
as

 a
nd

 
N

ew
 Y

ea
r 

fe
st

iv
iti

es
.  

T
hi

s 
is

 b
ei

ng
 

ta
ck

le
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
D

R
P

 W
in

te
r 

S
af

et
y 

P
la

n 
-O

pe
ra

tio
n 

C
hr

is
tm

as
 P

re
se

nc
e 

w
ill

 p
ut

 
de

di
ca

te
d 

un
ifo

rm
ed

 p
re

se
nc

e 
in

 h
ig

h 
st

re
et

s 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ev
en

in
g 

to
 ta

ck
le

 p
ub

lic
 

di
so

rd
er

 n
or

m
al

ly
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

co
ns

um
in

g 
to

o 
m

uc
h 

al
co

ho
l d

ur
in

g 
ce

le
br

at
io

ns
.

N
W

B
C

U
3

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

ob
be

rie
s 

M
C

61
29

24
W

34
27

I
39

32
W

58
51

I

S
im

ila
r 

to
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

m
on

th
s 

co
m

m
en

ts
: 

T
he

se
 r

ep
or

ts
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 b
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 u
si

ng
 fo

rc
e 

(b
ut

 n
ot

 p
hy

si
ca

l 
ha

rm
) 

to
 s

te
al

 m
ob

ile
 p

ho
ne

s 
fr

om
 o

th
er

 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
.  

T
he

 lo
w

 v
ol

um
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
th

is
 c

rim
e 

ty
pe

 m
ea

ns
 th

at
 a

ny
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

ar
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 d

el
iv

er
; e

ac
h 

in
ci

de
nt

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
al

t w
ith

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

 b
y 

ou
r 

co
lle

ag
ue

s 
at

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

P
ol

ic
e.

2

Page 88



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ep

o
rt

 -
ed

?
�

��
��

��
��

	

�

�
�

�	
��

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

N
o

v 
T

ar
g

et
N

o
v 

A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 &
 

tr
en

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

ut
tu

rn
E

st
. 

O
ut

tu
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

N
W

B
C

U
4

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
es

 
M

C
74

4
34

6
35

1
I

40
5

38
9

I
46

1
44

6
W

69
0

67
5

W

T
he

 le
ve

l o
f v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
e 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ag

ai
n 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 O
ct

ob
er

 
bu

t n
ot

 to
 th

e 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l t

ha
t w

e 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
in

g 
ea

rli
er

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
.  

T
he

se
 c

rim
es

 a
re

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 th

ef
ts

 
fr

om
 m

ot
or

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ith
 a

 tr
en

d 
of

 to
ol

s 
be

in
g 

st
ol

en
 fr

om
 v

an
s.

  A
 fu

ll 
an

al
ys

is
 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
e 

C
D

R
P

 T
as

ki
ng

 
G

ro
up

 w
ho

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 r

es
po

ns
es

 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 m

on
th

 to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

s 
fr

om
 

Ja
nu

ar
y.

 V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

V
eh

ic
le

 C
he

ck
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t D

ec
em

be
r 

by
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 W
ar

de
ns

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

C
D

R
P

 W
in

te
r 

S
af

et
y 

P
la

n.

N
W

B
C

U
6

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 C

rim
in

al
 D

am
ag

e 
In

ci
de

nt
s 

M
C

1,
06

4
53

8
46

8
W

61
5

54
3

I
69

9
62

1
W

10
41

96
3

I

W
e 

se
em

 to
 b

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
le

ve
ls

 o
f c

rim
in

al
 d

am
ag

e 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 a
t 

lo
w

er
 le

ve
ls

 th
an

 p
er

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
s.

  A
 lo

t o
f 

ta
rg

et
ed

 p
at

ro
ls

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 a
t 

ke
y 

tim
es

 a
nd

 w
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 d

o 
so

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 D
ec

em
be

r 
an

d 
Ja

nu
ar

y.
  M

os
t 

of
fe

nc
es

 a
re

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

- 
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
w

in
g 

m
irr

or
s,

 d
en

ts
 a

nd
 

sc
ra

tc
he

s,
 a

nd
 a

er
ia

ls
.

LP
I C

S
 1

a
C

C
TV

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 -

 C
rim

e
M

C
3,

40
7

1,
69

8
1,

59
4

I
1,

98
1

1,
93

9
I

2,
26

4
2,

14
8

W
3,

40
0

3,
40

0
In

ci
de

nt
s 

of
 th

ef
t, 

A
S

B
, a

nd
 A

ss
au

lt 
w

er
e 

al
l c

on
si

de
ra

bl
y 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

m
on

th

LP
I C

S
1b

C
C

TV
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

In
iti

at
ed

 b
y 

C
C

TV
M

C
99

1
49

2
45

3
I

57
4

54
4

I
65

6
61

3
W

1,
04

7
1,

04
7

S
ta

ff 
ob

se
rv

at
io

ns
 w

er
e 

lo
w

 b
ut

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
du

ce
d 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 A

S
B

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ss
au

lts
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

.

LP
I C

S
4

N
o.

 o
f h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

(a
ct

iv
ity

 
m

ea
su

re
)

M
S

n/
a

1
S

n/
a

2
n/

a
N

/A
2

n/
a

n/
a

2 
re

po
rt

s 
of

 h
at

e 
cr

im
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

N
ov

em
be

r.
  1

  r
ep

or
t t

hr
ou

gh
 B

D
H

T
 a

nd
 

on
e 

di
re

ct
 to

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
T

ea
m

.  
B

ot
h 

re
po

rt
s 

w
er

e 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 

ra
ci

sm
.  

B
ot

h 
ca

se
s 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n.

LP
I C

S
5

%
 o

f  
re

po
rt

ed
 h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

re
qu

iri
ng

 fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
th

at
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
 

M
S

10
0

10
0

S
10

0
10

0
S

10
0

10
0

S
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
S

S
ee

 a
bo

ve

LP
I S

C
1

N
um

be
r 

of
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 a
rt

s 
ev

en
ts

M
C

20
,6

42
18

,4
55

20
,1

53
I

19
,1

65
20

,9
16

S
21

,1
65

23
,1

41
W

21
,2

61
23

,5
00

T
he

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 C
hr

is
tm

as
 L

ig
ht

s 
S

w
itc

h 
O

n 
ev

en
t w

as
 w

el
l a

tte
nd

ed
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
, 

de
sp

ite
 it

 r
ai

ni
ng

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
ev

en
t. 

R
ub

er
y 

C
hr

is
tm

as
 L

ig
ht

s 
S

w
itc

h 
O

n 
ev

en
t 

w
as

 v
er

y 
w

el
l a

tte
nd

ed
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
, w

ith
 th

e 
w

ea
th

er
 

be
in

g 
dr

y 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ev
en

t. 
T

he
 

en
te

rt
ai

nm
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

w
as

 v
er

y 
w

el
l 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
t t

he
 2

 e
ve

nt
s,

 w
ith

 b
ot

h 
ev

en
ts

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

lo
ca

l s
ch

oo
l c

hi
ld

re
n 

la
nt

er
n 

pa
ra

de
s 

3

Page 89



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ep

o
rt

 -
ed

?
�

��
��

��
��

	

�

�
�

�	
��

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

N
o

v 
T

ar
g

et
N

o
v 

A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 &
 

tr
en

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

ut
tu

rn
E

st
. 

O
ut

tu
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

S
C

3
D

ol
ph

in
 C

en
tr

e 
U

sa
ge

M
C

62
7,

40
4

21
6,

06
4

20
4,

52
3

W
26

1,
82

7
24

0,
09

0
I

30
9,

02
2

27
5,

36
7

W
50

2,
47

8
47

7,
09

0

U
sa

ge
 fo

r 
N

ov
em

be
r 

w
as

 d
ow

n 
on

 ta
rg

et
 

an
d 

si
m

ila
r 

to
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

m
on

th
. W

e 
ha

d 
2 

sw
im

m
in

g 
ga

la
's

 b
oo

ke
d 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
ce

lle
d 

at
 s

ho
rt

 n
ot

ic
e,

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 
pa

rt
y 

sl
ot

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
po

ol
. G

ym
 u

sa
ge

 is
 

go
od

, w
ith

 a
 s

m
al

l i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 m
em

be
rs

. 
T

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 a

s 
m

uc
h 

as
 in

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
m

on
th

s 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 y

ea
r.

 T
hi

s 
is

 to
 

be
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

an
d 

is
 a

n 
in

du
st

ry
 tr

en
d 

ex
hi

bi
te

d 
at

 m
os

t f
ac

ili
tie

s.
 U

sa
ge

 fo
r 

D
ec

em
be

r 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

qu
ie

te
r 

th
an

 
pr

ev
io

us
 m

on
th

s 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

tim
e 

of
 y

ea
r,

 
re

du
ce

d 
op

en
in

g 
ho

ur
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
fe

st
iv

e 
pe

rio
d 

an
d 

sw
im

 s
ch

oo
l n

ot
 r

un
ni

ng
 

du
rin

g 
th

is
 p

er
io

d.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 h

ad
 fu

ll 
up

ta
ke

 o
n 

ou
r 

ne
w

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

le
ss

on
s 

fo
r 

Ja
nu

ar
y,

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
us

ag
e.

S
C

4
S

po
rt

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t u
sa

ge
s

M
C

21
,2

19
13

,0
82

14
,3

07
W

15
,1

12
17

,3
71

I
17

,1
42

21
,0

35
I

22
,5

56
30

,0
05

I
In

cr
ea

se
d 

us
ag

es
 d

ue
 to

 H
oc

ke
y 

an
d 

R
ug

by
 fe

st
iv

al
s,

 S
po

rt
 U

nl
im

ite
d 

co
ac

hi
ng

 
an

d 
fr

ee
 g

ym
 s

es
si

on
s.

To
w

n 
C

en
tr

e 
C

ar
 P

ar
k 

U
sa

ge
M

S
n/

a
n/

a
12

4,
06

0
W

n/
a

13
4,

65
4

I
n/

a
13

0,
99

5
W

n/
a

n/
a

U
sa

ge
 is

 s
lig

ht
ly

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 la

st
 m

on
th

S
ho

pm
ob

ili
ty

 C
en

tr
e 

U
sa

ge
 (

M
on

th
ly

)
M

S
n/

a
15

0
19

6
I

15
0

16
3

W
15

0
15

6
W

15
0

15
0

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 b
e 

ab
ov

e 
ta

rg
et

LP
I L

L1
Li

fe
 li

ne
 u

ni
ts

 in
 u

se
M

S
54

7
69

0
72

5
I

70
0

73
3

I
71

0
72

8
W

75
0

75
0

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

2 
P

T
G

 r
ef

er
ra

ls
 a

nd
 1

3 
pr

iv
at

e 
re

fe
rr

al
s,

 th
is

 w
as

 u
nu

su
al

ly
 lo

w
. 

C
an

ce
lla

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
hi

gh
. R

es
ea

rc
h 

fo
un

d 
th

is
 w

as
 m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 S
er

vi
ce

 U
se

rs
 

pa
ss

in
g 

aw
ay

, n
ot

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

r 
di

ss
at

is
fa

ct
io

n.
 

M
* 

= 
in

 th
e 

m
on

th
s 

w
he

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

( 
3 

tim
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r)

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s

N
I 1

57
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f m
aj

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

M
C

68
.8

0
80

.0
0

10
0.

00
S

80
.0

0
10

0.
00

S
80

.0
0

10
0.

00
s

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

M
aj

or
s;

 0
/0

 =
 N

/A
N

at
io

na
l T

ar
ge

t 6
0%

 (
Lo

ca
l T

ar
ge

t 8
0%

)

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 m

aj
or

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

ith
 n

on
e 

in
 J

ul
y 

an
d 

on
ly

 1
 

in
 A

ug
us

t 3
 in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 N
o 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 in
 th

is
 c

at
eg

or
y 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
 o

r 
N

ov
em

be
r.

 

4

Page 90



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ep

o
rt

 -
ed

?
�

��
��

��
��

	

�

�
�

�	
��

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

N
o

v 
T

ar
g

et
N

o
v 

A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 &
 

tr
en

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

ut
tu

rn
E

st
. 

O
ut

tu
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

N
I 1

57
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f m
in

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

M
C

76
.5

0
85

.0
0

84
.0

0
I

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

W
85

.0
0

86
.0

0
I

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

M
in

or
s;

 9
/9

 =
 1

00
%

N
at

io
na

l T
ar

ge
t 6

5%
 (

Lo
ca

l T
ar

ge
t 8

5%
)

P
re

vi
ou

s 
m

on
th

s 
ha

d 
se

en
; 1

6 
in

 J
ul

y,
 1

7 
in

 A
ug

us
t a

nd
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
to

 7
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 
O

ct
ob

er
 s

aw
 a

 m
in

or
 in

cr
ea

se
 to

 9
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
al

so
 s

aw
 9

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 a
ll 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 ti
m

e

N
I 1

57
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

M
C

89
.5

0
90

.0
0

89
.0

0
W

90
.0

0
89

.0
0

I
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
I

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

O
th

er
s;

 4
6/

47
 =

 9
8%

 
N

at
io

na
l T

ar
ge

t 8
0%

 (
Lo

ca
l T

ar
ge

t 9
0%

)

M
in

or
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
im

ila
r 

th
is

 
m

on
th

 to
 O

ct
ob

er
. 

(P
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 in
 th

is
 m

on
th

 
w

er
e 

48
 in

 J
un

e,
 5

6 
in

 J
ul

y 
an

d 
55

 in
 

A
ug

us
t.)

O
ne

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

w
en

t o
ve

r 
(S

t E
liz

ab
et

h’
s 

co
tta

ge
 C

le
nt

) 
du

e 
to

 c
om

pl
ex

iti
es

 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 tr
ee

 is
su

es
.

E
-g

o
v 

&
 C

u
st

o
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
S

C

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
es

 C
us

to
m

er
 C

on
ta

ct
 

C
en

tr
e

M
S

n/
a

7,
63

7
7,

20
4

7,
16

1
n/

a
C

on
ta

ct
 c

en
tr

e 
ca

ll 
vo

lu
m

es
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 la

st
 m

on
th

 a
nd

 m
ac

h 
la

st
 y

ea
rs

 
pr

of
ile

C
S

C

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
w

itc
hb

oa
rd

M
S

n/
a

4,
24

7
4,

49
5

4,
29

5
n/

a

C
al

ls
 to

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l s

w
itc

hb
oa

rd
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

 a
  2

%
  f

al
l c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 la

st
 

m
on

th
, t

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
ca

ll 
pr

of
ile

 m
at

ch
es

 
la

st
 y

ea
rs

C
S

C
LP

I3
.1

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

at
 F

irs
t P

oi
nt

 o
f C

on
ta

ct
 a

ll 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
)

M
S

99
.0

0
95

.0
0

97
I

95
.0

0
91

W
95

.0
0

97
I

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

O
ve

ra
ll 

re
so

lu
tio

n 
fig

ur
e 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
th

is
 m

on
th

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 la
st

 m
on

th
 a

nd
 is

 
no

w
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

  p
re

vi
ou

s 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
  

du
rin

g 
th

is
 y

ea
r

C
S

C
LP

I3
.2

%
 o

f C
al

ls
 A

ns
w

er
ed

M
S

87
.0

0
85

.0
0

86
.0

0
W

85
.0

0
92

.0
0

I
85

.0
0

92
.0

0
S

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 la
st

 m
on

th

C
S

C
LP

I3
.3

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
pe

ed
 o

f A
ns

w
er

 (
se

co
nd

s)
M

S
30

.0
0

20
.0

0
24

.0
0

W
20

.0
0

13
.0

0
I

20
.0

0
15

.0
0

W
20

.0
0

20
G

oo
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 la
st

 
m

on
th

s 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
's

 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t

5

Page 91



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

R
ep

o
rt

 -
ed

?
�

��
��

��
��

	

�

�
�

�	
��

S
ep

. T
ar

g
et

S
ep

. A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

nd
O

ct
 T

ar
g

et
O

ct
 A

ct
ua

l
T

ar
g

et
 &

 
tr

en
d

N
o

v 
T

ar
g

et
N

o
v 

A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

g
et

 &
 

tr
en

d
T

ar
g

et
E

st
. O

ut
tu

rn
E

st
. 

O
ut

tu
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

��
��

��
�

20
09

/1
0

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

01
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 M

on
th

ly
.  

S
ou

rc
e 

 n
ew

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
sy

st
em

. 
M

C
27

0
n/

a
96

I
n/

a
10

8
W

n/
a

11
9

I
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 w
er

e:
 1

 a
bo

ut
 a

n 
er

ro
r 

in
 T

og
et

he
r 

B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

, 1
 a

bo
ut

 
H

ig
hw

ay
s,

 1
 a

bo
ut

 a
 b

en
ef

it 
cl

ai
m

,1
 a

bo
ut

 
th

e 
D

ol
ph

in
 C

en
tr

e,
 1

 a
bo

ut
 P

ar
ki

ng
 S

ta
ff,

 
2 

ab
ou

t R
ef

us
e 

lo
rr

ie
s 

dr
iv

in
g 

on
 to

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

dr
iv

es
,1

 a
bo

ut
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

gr
ee

n 
bi

n,
 1

 a
bo

ut
 T

r

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

03
 

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

im
en

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

M
C

70
n/

a
21

W
n/

a
28

W
n/

a
34

W
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a

C
om

pl
im

en
ts

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
w

er
e 

- 
2 

ab
ou

t 
ev

en
ts

 o
rg

an
is

ed
 b

y 
S

po
rt

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

1 
ab

ou
t t

he
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 
S

po
rt

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

2 
ab

ou
t t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 

gi
ve

n 
by

 S
tr

ee
t C

le
an

si
ng

 a
nd

 1
 a

bo
ut

 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 b
y 

th
e 

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

05
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 tr

an
sp

or
t i

nc
om

e 
(£

)
M

C
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
25

0
30

0
n/

a
52

5
67

3
I

1,
87

5
1,

87
5

In
co

m
e 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
N

ov
em

be
r

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

N
I1

81
Ti

m
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
B

/C
T 

be
ne

fit
 

ne
w

 c
la

im
s 

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

en
ts

 (
da

ys
)

M
C

15
.0

3
15

.0
0

11
.5

5
I

15
.0

0
10

.3
9

I
15

.0
0

9.
89

I
15

.0
0

13
.0

0
I

T
he

 h
ig

h 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

la
st

 
m

on
th

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 
D

ec
em

be
r,

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 a
 fu

rt
he

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 d

at
e 

pr
oc

es
si

ng
 ti

m
es

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
ha

rd
 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

st
af

f. 
 T

he
y 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
m

an
ag

ed
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 it

em
s 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

an
d 

th
e 

ol
de

st
 it

em
 o

f w
or

k 
is

 
no

w
 ju

st
 o

ve
r 

on
e 

m
on

th
 o

ld
, c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 6

 w
ee

ks
 in

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
m

on
th

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

n/
a

90
.0

0
83

.2
3

I
90

.0
0

83
.2

9
I

90
.0

0
83

.4
6

I
90

.0
0

90
.0

0

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

in
vo

ic
es

 p
ai

d 
w

ith
in

 1
0 

da
ys

, i
t h

as
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 8

3.
69

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 to

 8
4.

59
 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r

F
P

00
1

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

99
.3

8
98

.0
0

98
.4

2
W

98
.0

0
98

.3
9

W
98

.0
0

98
.4

0
I

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

O
n 

T
ar

ge
t

L
eg

al
, E

q
u

al
it

ie
s 

an
d

 
D

em
o

cr
at

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
P

I's
 r

ep
or

te
d 

m
on

th
ly

 
fo

r 
th

is
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t

H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 &
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

LP
I 

(f
or

m
er

ly
 

B
V

12
)

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s.

M
C

10
.6

6
4.

26
5.

44
I

4.
97

5.
95

I
5.

68
6.

65
I

8.
75

9.
97

I

A
lth

ou
gh

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
ab

se
nc

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

sl
ig

ht
ly

  i
n 

N
ov

em
be

r 
it 

w
as

 s
til

l w
ith

in
 th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 ta

rg
et

, c
on

se
qu

en
tly

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
fo

r 
ye

ar
 e

nd
 h

as
 r

ed
uc

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
4th

 m
on

th
 in

 s
uc

ce
ss

io
n.

  C
ur

re
nt

ly
 4

 
ou

t o
f t

he
 7

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

as
 a

re
 G

re
en

, w
ith

 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

3 
be

in
g 

R
ed

.

6

Page 92



S
tr

ee
ts

ce
n

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

T
ar

ge
t

48
.6

1
50

.0
1

49
.1

2
49

.0
0

49
.0

4
49

.0
3

48
.2

7
50

.1
3

54
.6

1
49

.3
2

45
.7

4
50

.1
1

A
ct

ua
l

52
.5

6
48

.1
0

50
.5

0
52

.1
1

45
.4

9
48

.3
3

51
.3

3
51

.4
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
04

0.
68

1,
86

7.
76

1,
96

0.
96

2,
02

3.
16

17
70

.8
4

18
81

.3
6

19
98

.3
1

20
02

.8
2

38
,8

28
38

,8
28

38
,8

28
38

,8
28

38
92

9
38

92
9

38
92

9
38

92
9

38
,8

28
38

,8
28

38
,8

28
38

,8
28

T
ar

ge
t

32
.0

7
31

.9
8

32
.5

8
33

.1
2

33
.7

8
34

.2
9

34
.5

1
34

.5
7

37
.4

9
33

.1
6

32
.6

8
32

.7
2

A
ct

ua
l

39
.3

0
42

.2
9

42
.1

9
41

.8
5

42
.4

1
43

.3
2

36
.8

6
33

.8
0

1,
32

1.
28

9
1,

36
8.

69
8

1,
43

0.
86

6
1,

45
5.

83
7

13
03

.9
29

14
37

.8
71

11
66

.5
89

10
22

.7
66

3,
36

1.
96

9
3,

23
6.

47
8

3,
39

1.
82

2
3,

47
8.

99
7

30
74

.7
69

33
19

.2
31

31
64

.8
99

30
25

.5
86

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

ge
t

95
95

95
95

95
95

95
95

95
95

95
95

A
ct

ua
l

12
9

12
3

12
7

67
68

49
79

59

T
ar

ge
t

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

A
ct

ua
l

18
6

20
18

9
5

9
13

T
ar

ge
t

45
9

47
5

45
9

47
5

47
5

45
9

47
5

45
9

47
5

47
5

42
9

47
5

A
ct

ua
l

45
9

40
9

42
7

48
8

47
3

43
1

40
8

41
5

T
ar

ge
t

32
33

32
33

33
32

32
33

33
33

30
33

A
ct

ua
l

35
13

33
16

25
23

11
19

T
ar

ge
t

76
85

85
82

85
79

77
71

69
70

63
76

A
ct

ua
l

81
81

75
93

10
3

10
7

83
66

T
ar

ge
t

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

4
5

A
ct

ua
l

4
4

3
4

4
5

3
5

T
ar

ge
t

58
59

57
59

59
57

59
57

59
59

53
59

A
ct

ua
l

59
37

65
77

66
49

38
57

T
ar

ge
t

84
99

92
85

75
10

3
77

84
96

77
73

96

A
ct

ua
l

75
79

60
95

76
83

75
78

N
W

B
C

U
1

N
W

B
C

U
3

N
W

B
C

U
2

A
pr

. 
M

ay
.

Ju
n.

Ju
l.

A
ug

.
S

ep
. 

O
ct

. 
N

ov
. 

N
I 1

92
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
e-

us
ed

, r
ec

yc
le

d 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
ed

F
re

q

20
09

/1
0 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

ig
u

re
s

D
ec

. 
Ja

n.
 

F
eb

.

C
um

 o
r 

S
na

p
M

ar
. 

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

N
I 1

91
R

es
id

ua
l H

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 p

er
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d

M
N

I 1
96

LP
I D

ep
ot

LP
I D

ep
ot

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
re

cy
cl

e 
w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

Im
pr

ov
ed

 s
tr

ee
t a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

cl
ea

nl
in

es
s 

 -
 fl

y 
tip

pi
ng

M
N

um
be

r 
of

 m
is

se
d 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
w

as
te

 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

M

CC C

M
C

M
C CC

M
C

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 

M
C

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ob
be

rie
s 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
es

N
W

B
C

U
4

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
es

 
M

N
W

B
C

U
6

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 c

rim
in

al
 d

am
ag

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

M
C

T
ot

al
 c

rim
es

M

Page 93



T
ar

ge
t

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

28
3

A
ct

ua
l

25
8

25
7

22
8

25
0

24
8

35
3

34
5

21
6

T
ar

ge
t

82
82

82
82

82
82

82
82

82
82

82
82

A
ct

ua
l

76
80

74
62

74
87

91
69

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

1
3

1
2

1
1

2
2

T
ar

ge
t

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

A
ct

ua
l

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

T
ar

ge
t

75
47

0
3,

02
5

1,
01

0
13

,1
75

70
0

71
0

2,
50

0

A
ct

ua
l

80
49

5
5,

40
5

84
0

12
,5

75
75

8
76

3
2,

22
5

T
ar

ge
t

34
,0

58
35

,1
73

35
,1

73
35

,1
73

35
,1

73
40

,1
99

45
,2

33
30

9,
02

2

A
ct

ua
l

29
,1

23
37

,3
36

33
,9

82
34

,2
21

30
,7

97
34

,4
68

35
,5

67
27

5,
36

7

T
ar

ge
t

1,
80

4
2,

03
0

2,
48

1
2,

48
1

2,
25

6
2,

03
0

2,
03

0
1,

80
4

1,
12

8
1,

12
8

1,
58

0
1,

80
4

A
ct

ua
l

1,
96

6
2,

51
4

2,
84

9
2,

68
6

2,
35

1
1,

94
1

3,
06

4
3,

66
4

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

12
7,

10
6

12
9,

16
7

13
0,

09
2

13
5,

96
5

12
5,

45
8

12
4,

06
0

13
4,

65
4

13
0,

99
5

T
ar

ge
t

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

A
ct

ua
l

13
0

13
6

17
8

16
6

15
6

19
6

16
3

15
6

T
ar

ge
t

64
0

65
0

66
0

67
0

68
0

69
0

70
0

71
0

72
0

73
0

74
0

75
0

A
ct

ua
l

64
3

64
4

65
7

68
2

68
7

72
5

73
3

72
8

M
* 

= 
in

 th
e 

m
on

th
s 

w
he

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

( 
3 

tim
es

 p
er

 y
ea

r)

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s

T
ar

ge
t

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

80
.0

0
80

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

n/
a

n/
a

10
0.

00
10

0.
00

n/
a

n/
a

1
2

0
0

1
3

0
0

1
2

0
0

1
3

0
0

T
ar

ge
t

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

92
.0

0
85

.7
0

70
.0

0
94

.0
0

70
.5

0
10

0.
00

89
.0

0
10

0.
00

12
12

7
15

12
7

8
9

13
14

10
16

17
7

9
9

T
ar

ge
t

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

89
.0

0
98

.0
0

85
.0

0
89

.0
0

89
.0

0
81

.0
0

90
.0

0
98

.0
0

41
54

41
50

49
39

38
46

N
I1

57
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
aj

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

N
I1

57
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
in

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

M

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e 
C

ar
 P

ar
k 

U
sa

ge

S
C

4

LP
I S

C
1

M
S CC

N
um

be
r 

of
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 a
rt

s 
ev

en
ts

M

LP
I C

S
1b

C
C

T
V

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
In

iti
at

ed
 b

y 
C

C
T

V
M

S
C

3
D

ol
ph

in
 C

en
tr

e 
U

sa
ge

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

N
I1

57
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

S
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t u

sa
ge

s
M

C

S
ho

pm
ob

ili
ty

 C
en

tr
e 

U
sa

ge
M

S

LP
I C

S
 1

a
C

C
T

V
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 -
 C

rim
e

M
C C

LP
I L

L1
Li

fe
 li

ne
 u

ni
ts

 in
 u

se
M

C

LP
I C

S
4

N
o.

 o
f h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

(a
ct

iv
ity

 
m

ea
su

re
)

M
S

LP
I C

S
5

%
 o

f  
re

po
rt

ed
 h

at
e 

cr
im

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

re
qu

iri
ng

 fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
th

at
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
 

M
S

Page 94



46
55

48
56

55
48

42
47

E
-g

o
v 

&
 c

u
st

o
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

8,
59

9
6,

71
4

7,
87

0
8,

27
7

6,
80

2
7,

63
7

7,
20

4
7,

16
1

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

4,
63

1
4,

20
3

4,
58

0
4,

45
2

3,
66

0
4,

24
7

4,
49

5
4,

29
5

T
ar

ge
t

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

95
.0

0
95

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

99
.0

0
99

.0
0

99
.0

0
93

.5
0

94
.0

0
97

.0
0

91
.0

0
97

.0
0

T
ar

ge
t

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

89
.0

0
92

.0
0

92
.0

0
86

.6
0

89
.0

0
86

.4
0

92
.0

0
92

.0
0

T
ar

ge
t

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

20
20

A
ct

ua
l

21
16

16
29

20
24

13
15

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
's

 
T

ar
ge

t
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a

A
ct

ua
l

25
22

20
12

12
5

12
11

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

ua
l

4
2

4
5

5
1

7
6

T
ar

ge
t

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

25
0

27
5

30
0

32
5

35
0

37
5

A
ct

ua
l

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

30
0

37
3

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

T
ar

ge
t

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

15
.0

0
15

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

11
.1

7
10

.2
9

14
.5

8
9.

28
10

.6
8

12
.7

3
6.

38
6.

74

12
,8

36
13

,4
75

18
,7

46
10

,6
90

8,
70

6
16

,3
42

12
,9

19
9,

65
6

1,
14

9
1,

30
9

1,
28

6
1,

15
2

81
5

1,
28

4
2,

02
5

1,
43

2
T

ar
ge

t
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
A

ct
ua

l
80

.8
8

83
.7

1
84

.7
7

85
.8

0
80

.9
7

83
.8

3
83

.6
9

84
.5

9

T
ar

ge
t

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

99
.3

4
98

.3
9

97
.9

7
98

.4
2

98
.4

2
98

.0
2

98
.1

7
98

.4
9

L
eg

al
, E

q
u

al
it

ie
s 

an
d

 D
em

o
cr

at
ic

 
S

er
vi

ce
s

H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 &
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

T
ar

ge
t

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
79

0.
79

0.
79

A
ct

ua
l

0.
85

0.
93

1.
15

1.
16

0.
84

0.
51

0.
50

0.
70

LP
I  

(f
or

m
er

ly
 

B
V

12
)

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s.

M
C

F
P

00
1

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

N
I 1

81
T

im
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
B

/C
T

 b
en

ef
it 

ne
w

 c
la

im
s 

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

en
ts

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

05
 

(D
M

)
C

om
m

un
ity

 tr
an

sp
or

t i
nc

om
e 

(£
)

M
C

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

03
 

(S
S

)

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

im
en

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 

M
C

LP
I 

C
C

P
P

01
 

(S
S

)

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 M

on
th

ly
.  

S
ou

rc
e 

 
ne

w
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
sy

st
em

. 
M

C

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.3
A

ve
ra

ge
 S

pe
ed

 o
f A

ns
w

er
 (

se
co

nd
s)

M
S

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.2
%

 o
f C

al
ls

 A
ns

w
er

ed
M

S

C
S

C
 L

P
I 3

.1
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
at

 F
irs

t P
oi

nt
 o

f C
on

ta
ct

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 (
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

)
M

S

C
S

C
M

on
th

ly
 C

al
l V

ol
um

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
S

w
itc

hb
oa

rd
M

S

C
S

C
M

on
th

ly
 C

al
l V

ol
um

es
 C

us
to

m
er

 C
on

ta
ct

 
C

en
tr

e
M

S

w
ee

ks
de

no
m

in
at

or

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

18TH JANUARY 2010 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD PROPOSED PROGRAMME 
2009/10 

 
Responsible Member 
 

Councillor – Kit Taylor, Performance Management 
Board Chairman  

Responsible Head of Service Hugh Bennett  -Assistant Chief Executive 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report sets out the agreed work programme for 2009/10. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that: 
 

i. The Board considers the programme. 
 
3 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Board now has an established programme for work, which links to the 

integrated financial/performance management cycle operated by the 
Council.  This cycle will produce the usual run of reports, but the Board 
has an opportunity to consider including additional reports on areas it 
wishes to focus on. 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The proposed new timetable links to the financial planning cycle. 
  
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 No legal implications to the report. 
 
6. CORPORATE OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1 The Board’s programme applies to all the Council’s objectives. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
7.1 The Board has previously expressed an interest in risk management.  This 

falls under the remit of the Audit Board; however, PMB can make 
recommendations to this Board or Cabinet on issues around risk 
management identified through its work. 

 

Agenda Item 11

Page 97



8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The Board will receive customer complaints data during 2009/10 as part of 

the quarterly integrated financial and performance reports. 
 
9. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

 Procurement Issues N/A 
 
Personnel Implications  N/A 
Governance/Performance Management N/A 
Community Safety  including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 N/A 
Policy N/A 
Environmental N/A 
Equalities and Diversity N/A 

 
10. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holders 
 

Via E-Mail and at 
PMB. 

Chief Executive 
 

Via e-mail. 

Corporate Director (Services)  
 

Via e-mail. 

Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Yes 

Head of Service 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Financial Services 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Legal & Democratic Services 
 

Via e-mail. 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

Via e-mail. 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
11. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 – PMB Work Programme 2009/10  
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

2008/09 PMB Work Programme. 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
Name:   Hugh Bennett  
E Mail:  h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881430 
 

Page 98



Appendix 1 
 

Proposed Performance Management Board Work Programme 2009/10 
 

Date Agenda Item 
 

Apr 09 TRAINING SESSION 
 
Period 11 09/10 Performance Report (distributed only, no 
meeting) 
 
Period 11 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 2 progress report 
(distributed only, no meeting). 
 

May 09 Period 12 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance report 
 
Period 12 09/10 Improvement  Plan Mark 2 progress report 
 
VFM Licensing Review (agreed with Chairman to delete this 
item). 
 
Outturn and Targets Report. 
 
Customer Access Strategy. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker. 
 

Jun 09 Period 1 09/10 Performance Report 
 
Period 1 Improvement Plan 2009/2010 Mark 4 
 
CPA Report and Direction of Travel 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

Jul 09 Period 2 09/010 Performance Report 
 
Period 2 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4  
 
Annual Financial and Performance Report 2008/2009. 
 
Local Neighbourhood Partnerships Business Case (deferred 
to September) 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker. 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 
 
 
 

Page 99



Aug 09 No meeting. 
 

Sep 09 Period 4 09/10 performance report 
 
Period 4 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Council Plan 2010/2013 Part 1 
 
Place Survey  
 
Community Safety Partnership (deferred to October) 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

Oct 09 Period 5 09/10 Performance Report. 
 
Period 5 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Bromsgrove Profile. 
 
Community Safety Partnership 
 
Work Programme. 
 

Nov 09 Quarter 2 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 6 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Community Strategy 2010/2013. 
 
Data Quality Strategy 6 Month Update (proposed move to 
September to create space for Profile and Place Survey). 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker  
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Dec 09 MEETING CANCELLED 
 
Period 7 09/10 Performance Report. 
 
Period 7 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 3 progress report. 
 
Community Strategy Annual Report 2008/09 (e-mailed to 
PMB Members and now considered by Full Council). 
 
2009/2010 Predicted Outturn Update (no longer applicable) 

Page 100



 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Spatial Project Benefits Review re-programmed to January) 
 
2008/2009 Predicted Outturn for Corporate Indicators (no 
longer required due to switch from BVPIs to NIs) 
 
Town Centre Update (re-programmed to January) 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 
 

Jan 10 Period 8 09/10 Performance Report 
 
Period 8 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report (from December meeting) 
 
Local Neighbourhood Partnership Review (called in to 
Overview and Scrutiny) 
 
Spatial Project Benefits Review re-programmed to January) 
 
2008/2009 Predicted Outturn for Corporate Indicators (no 
longer required due to switch from BVPIs to NIs) 
 
Town Centre Update (re-programmed to January) 
 
What is Excellence? (moved by Board to January) 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Feb 10 Quarter 3 09/10 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 9 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Annual Artrix Performance Report (re-programmed to 
February). 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker (re-programmed to 
February). 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report. 
 
Performance Management Strategy Annual Update. 
 
6 Month Review of Data Quality Strategy. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Mar 10 Period 10 07/08 Performance Report. 
 

Page 101



Period 10 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Staff Survey Results (if undertaken) 
 
Housing Strategy Action Plan Update and Housing Inspection 
Action Plan. 
 
Council Plan 2010-2013. 
 
PMB Work Programme 20010/2011. 
 

 
 
 

Page 102


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 16th November 2009
	4 Selby Benchmarking Visit
	Appendix 1 - Performance Analysis 2008-2009 v1
	Appendix 2 - Savings and Efficiencies

	5 Spatial Projects Benefits Review
	7 Town Centre Update
	Appendix 1 - Town Centre Project Board Report
	Appendix 2 - Town Centre Programme Update

	8 Shared Services Highlight Report
	Appendix 1 - Shared Services Highlight Report

	9 Improvement Plan Exception Report (November 2009)
	10 Performance Report (November 2009)
	Appendix 1 - SUMMARY Period 5
	Appendix 2 - Performance Indicators Period 07
	Appendix 3 - 2009-10 Monthly Performance Figures

	11 Work Programme

